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PART I
When used in this report, unless the context requires otherwise, the terms "TMNG," "TMNG Global," "we," "us," "our" or the
"Company" refer to The Management Network Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
With the exception of current and historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements
as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
statements of plans and objectives, statements of future economic performance or financial projections, statements of assumptions
underlying such statements, and statements of the Company's or management's intentions, hopes, beliefs, expectations or predictions
of the future. Forward-looking statements can often be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as "will be,"
"should," "could," "plan," "estimate," "intend," "continue," "believe," "may," "expect," "hope," "anticipate," "goal" or "forecast,"
variations thereof or similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties and are not guarantees of future performance or results. Our actual
financial condition, results of operations or business may vary materially from those contemplated by such forward looking
statements. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Factors that might affect actual
results, performance, or achievements include, among other things, the factors described in "Risks Related to Current Economic
Conditions and Technology" in Item 1 below and the following factors:
•

conditions in the industry sectors that we serve, including the economic conditions in such industry sectors, that can result in
slowing client decisions on proposals and project opportunities along with scope reduction of existing projects;

•

the financial condition and business strategies of our customers in the communications, digital media and technology
industries and the investment banking and private equity firms investing in the communications industry;

•

overall economic and business conditions, including the current economic slowdown;

•

the level of demand for our services;

•

the potential continuation or recurrence of recent losses from operations, negative cash flow and reductions in our cash
reserves;

•

our ability to retain the limited number of large clients that constitute a major portion of our revenues;

•

fluctuations in our quarterly operating results;

•

our ability to reduce our cost structure to align with reduced demand and to control costs under fixed fee contracts, which
make up a substantial portion of our business;

•

our ability to compete in intensively competitive markets, including our ability to address actions by competitors that could
render our services less competitive, such as increasing price competition in recent years, which may cause our revenues,
gross profits and income to decline;

•

our ability to address the challenges of conducting business in foreign countries, including risks of unfavorable foreign
currency exchange rates or fluctuations and changes in local laws;

•

the possibility of further impairments of goodwill if our financial performance does not meet or exceed our projections used
to value the assets or if there is a further decline in our stock price;

•

our ability to successfully integrate acquisitions and to successfully locate new acquisition candidates;

•

our level of cash and non-cash expenditures;

•

technological advances and competitive factors in the markets in which we compete;

•

the possibility of the cancellation of key client contracts, which may be cancelled on short notice;

•

the ability to successfully launch new product and market initiatives, including our new mobile device leasing initiative;

•

the ability to retain key management and consulting personnel, particularly given the performance of our stock and the
impact of a low stock price on the value of share-based compensation;

•

the possible reclassification of our independent contractors as full-time employees by the taxing and/or labor and
employment authorities of competent jurisdiction;

•

the possibility of professional liability claims and costs and potential liability relating to such claims and other litigation
affecting the Company;

•

the loss of key intellectual property;

•

our ability to satisfy the continued listing requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market; and

•

the possibility that our ability to utilize tax net operating loss carryforwards to offset future taxable income will be limited if
we are deemed to have an ownership change as defined by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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Other factors that we have not identified in this document could also have this effect. All forward-looking statements made in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K are made as of the date hereof. We will not necessarily update the information in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K if any forward-looking statement later turns out to be inaccurate.
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS

GENERAL
TMNG, a Delaware corporation, founded in 1990, is a leading provider of professional services and technical solutions to the
global leaders in the communications, digital media, and technology industries. We offer a fully integrated suite of offerings including
strategy, management, marketing, operational, and technology consulting services, as well as software solutions and application
development (see "Services" in Item 1). We have consulting experience in virtually every major aspect of managing and operating a
global communications company. Our heritage of industry knowledge and deep technical and operational expertise has allowed us to
continually enhance the software solutions and proprietary toolsets that enable our advisory, analytical, operational, and technical
support. In this way, our clients can leverage our expertise to optimize their performance, improve cash flow and gain sustainable
competitive advantage in the market.
Our clientele includes a variety of businesses whose products, services and interests are focused on the evolution of the
communications industry, including wireless and traditional wireline communications service providers, cable multiple systems
operators (MSOs) as well as technology companies, media and entertainment companies, and financial services firms that invest in the
communications industry. Our clients are principally located in the United States, United Kingdom and Western Europe. We believe
we are unique in our ability to provide a comprehensive business and technology solution to the communications industry, including
strategy consulting and business planning, organizational development, market research and analysis, product/service definition and
launch, customer acquisition and retention, program management, technical support, process modeling and software solutions for
business support systems and operations support systems. Our software and application development capabilities are primarily
targeted to clients' revenue and service assurance, and data management initiatives.
Our services are provided by a blend of experienced senior professionals from the communications industry and professionals
recruited from both universities and other professional services firms. As it relates to most key software and technology decisions, we
believe our clients value our unbiased approach of providing technology-agnostic and vendor-neutral evaluations and
recommendations that are based on a thorough knowledge of each solution and each client's unique situation. Therefore, we are able to
capitalize on extensive experience across complex multi-technology communications systems environments to provide what we
believe are the most sound and practical recommendations to our clients.
We have evolved our business from its original focus of providing primarily management and operational consulting services to
today providing an integrated suite of product and service offerings to the communications marketplace. We have increased the depth
and breadth of skill sets in our employee work base, diversified our technical competencies, expanded our core management
consulting offerings and positioned us to compete internationally. We believe these actions have expanded key client relationships,
have differentiated us in the market with respect to serving the needs of large global communication service providers, and provided
for expansion of our key direct distribution channel elements.
We strengthened TMNG's technology consultancy services and broadened our service offerings through the addition of
Ascertain®, an innovative and modular software suite that features advanced revenue assurance and data integrity tools that when
customized and integrated into client environments support fixed, wireless, internet service provider (“ISP”), data and content
environments. We added Ascertain to our offerings portfolio through our acquisition of Cartesian Limited (“Cartesian”) in 2007.
Cartesian brought expertise in billing management and revenue assurance — two traditional strengths of our consulting business —
but did so from a technology and network perspective, thus complimenting our business process focus. The addition of software
solutions to our offerings portfolio has enabled TMNG to strengthen our position with clients. Building on its technical expertise,
Cartesian has developed an innovative and modular software suite, called Ascertain®, which features advanced revenue assurance and
data integrity tools that when customized and integrated into client environments support fixed, wireless, internet service provider
("ISP"), data and content environments. Cartesian's client list includes "Tier 1" companies in the United Kingdom and Europe, and in
recent years, TMNG has begun early introduction of the product with U.S.-based carriers and cable system operators, opening a
potentially significant new market to this product.
We have diversified our client base organically by building a cable and broadband practice. With the convergence of this
industry around multiple video, data and voice service offerings, we apply our traditional expertise in complex business processes

such as revenue assurance, billing management, and mediation, as well as in leading functional areas like program management
offices, across the global converging communications marketplace. We have developed solutions to assist content providers, and
media companies as they cope with the operational complexities of launching new products and services; attempt to streamline their
business systems and processes following merger and acquisition activity; and address product lifecycle issues in the wake of
competitive pressures. We are also providing program management, business process, service assurance and leadership teams for
cable MSO's as they launch new digital voice product and service rollouts, including voice over internet protocol offerings, and focus
on their 4G wireless launch.
As the industry continues to evolve, including the most recent transformation movement of business IT infrastructures to cloud
environments, TMNG expects to leverage its long history of engagement experience with clients to continue modifying its toolsets,
develop new methodologies, and selectively expand its base of employee consultants to support and extend its thought leadership and
capabilities in the communications industry.
MARKET OVERVIEW
The global communications industry is evolving around a convergence of voice, data and video or content-based
communications. Market factors including regulatory decisions, new technologies, especially wireless devices and applications and
social media, industry consolidation and the migration to cloud computing have stimulated growth and new investment in the sector.
These dynamics are bringing new competitors to the market, such as Apple, Google and Netflix, challenging existing industry
competitors to explore new business models, and driving consolidation within sectors such as traditional wireline and wireless
telecommunications. In addition, cable communications companies that historically primarily offered video services are now
positioning themselves as providers of voice and other data and content services. Wireline, wireless and cable companies alike are
focused on convergence and partnering — where any type of content or application can be delivered seamlessly across fixed or mobile
networks.
While communications companies are investing in future growth, as a result of the global economic slowdown that began in
2008, companies across most industries and sectors, including communications and media, are operating with increased expense
discipline with many reducing their cost structures through actions which include lowering total headcount, decreasing information
technology expenses by migrating to cloud environments, and reducing spending on contractors and consultants. Spending decisions,
both operating and capital expenses, are coming under increased scrutiny with a heightened focus on a demonstrated return on
investment or lower total cost.
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It has been our experience that because the expertise necessary to address the market's needs is typically outside communications
companies core competencies, they must ultimately either recruit and employ talent with the necessary experience or retain outside
specialists. Additionally, the convergence of the communications, media and entertainment industries has brought forth many new
competitors from outside the traditional communications industries who we believe do not possess the experience or skill sets needed
to execute new business plans. We believe due to the range of expertise required and the time and expense associated with hiring and
training new personnel, bringing expertise in-house is often not a viable option. We believe customers will continue to contract with
consultative firms or outsource some of the expertise required to adapt to new environments and capitalize on new technologies now
emerging, while maintaining a cost effective structure. When retaining outside specialists, we believe communications companies
need experts who fully understand the communications industry and can provide timely and unbiased advice and recommendations for
cost-effective solutions, including revenue assurance and expense avoidance. TMNG has positioned its business to respond to these
anticipated needs.
BUSINESS STRATEGY
Our objective is to establish ourselves as the consulting company of choice to the global leaders in the communications, digital
media, and technology industries, which includes the service providers, content creators, and technology companies that serve the
industry and the financial services and investment banking firms that invest in the sector. In 2011 and continuing in the near term, we
are placing greater emphasis on cultivating our top client relationships and their most strategic initiatives, with the goal of expanding
market penetration and share with these clients. We also continue to investigate opportunities with other, smaller clients that offer a
high probability of a return on our business development investment. The following are key strategies we have adopted to pursue our
objectives.
- Develop and evolve offerings, solutions and thought leadership
We plan to continue expanding and evolving our end-to-end solutions. Expanding our consulting and technical solutions
involves building the capabilities that support change elements in the adoption of IP and wireless technology, support of convergence
of communications with media and content, with emphasis on wireless, and the migration of IT environments to cloud computing
platforms. We plan to continue to extend our product and service offerings to the communications, digital media and technology
industries. We believe wireline and wireless providers will be strategically focused on the following key initiatives: adding, bundling
and converging service offerings (i.e., wireline, wireless, high-speed data and video); reduction of costs; reassessment of core
competencies in order to leverage strengths and minimize weaknesses; migration to new technologies — next generation wireless and
IP and driving efficiency in their business models while spending less on information technology in the near term, given the current
economic environment. We also believe that our clients will expand service offerings through cloud IT environments and look to such
environments to reduce operating costs. We have expanded our strategic and operating expertise surrounding the creation and
operation of cloud infrastructure and services. Our solutions will assist clients in redefining their competitive position, launching new
products and services and generating revenues through integrated offerings. Such offerings will also be focused on increasing clients'
efficiencies in these transformations. We will also continue to strengthen our position with clients by leveraging our embedded
software-based solutions, including Ascertain and Ascertain-based solutions, including through development of applications based on
these solutions in such areas as mobile handset recapture and leasing. We will also evaluate expanding our offerings to include
managed services, possibly with partners surrounding these initiatives.
- Focused and effective recruitment and retention
We believe a key element of our business model is the attraction and retention of high quality, experienced consultants. Our two
primary challenges in the recruitment of new consulting personnel are the ability to recruit talented personnel with the skill sets
necessary to capitalize on an industry undergoing revolutionary change and the ability to execute such recruitment with an appropriate
compensation arrangement.
We enhance consultants' existing skill sets with proprietary toolsets that provide methodologies they use to augment their
experience and help analyze and solve clients' problems. We utilize a network of databases to serve as a knowledge base, enabling
consultant collaboration on engagements and providing support information and updates of TMNG current toolsets and releases of
next generation tools. Finally, we continue to manage our flexible and unique employee and independent subject matter expert model
to maximize skill set offerings, while minimizing the effect of non-billable consultant time.
- Enhancing our global presence

We plan to further enhance our presence beyond the United States and United Kingdom, with emphasis on current top revenue
generating clients on the European continent. We believe the competitive market expertise of our U.S. consultants can be a key factor
for foreign companies facing the business issues associated with deregulation and competition, especially in Europe. We believe
Cartesian and our strategy consulting expertise strengthen TMNG Global's presence and capabilities in key European markets.
- Increase penetration within top revenue-generating clients
In response to the economic downturn, we adjusted our sales strategy to focus on increasing the number of engagements within
our top revenue-generating clients and minimize new business related costs. The approach included volume pricing arrangements and
was designed to give us both revenue visibility and add efficiency to the model so as to ensure optimum utilization of our consultant
base. In fiscal year 2011, 84% of our revenues came from our ten most significant customers, unchanged from 84% in fiscal year
2010.
SERVICES
TMNG Global along with our brands CSMG and Cartesian, provide a robust portfolio of strategic, management, and technical
consulting, as well as products, services and technical solutions, to the communications industry worldwide, including:

5

- Strategy and Business Case Development
We provide comprehensive strategic analysis to service providers, media and entertainment companies, equipment
manufacturers and financial investors in the communications industry. Our approach combines rigorous qualitative and quantitative
analyses with a detailed understanding of industry trends, technologies, and developments. We provide clients with specific solutions
to their key strategic issues relating to their existing business as well as new product and service opportunities. Our services include
business case development, data and content strategies, marketing spending optimization, service and brand diversification, enterprise
and small business strategies, technology commercialization and operational strategies.
- Knowledge Management
We assist our clients in managing the process of capturing and cultivating information that exists within their organizations. We
utilize an integrated partnership approach to seamlessly leverage an organization's human knowledge capital. We provide a tailored
solution to solve problems associated with knowledge creation and distribution, sharing and leveraging existing knowledge, tools and
processes. Our approach connects people to information to enable organizations to best leverage existing assets, define competitive
advantage and create measurable business value.
- Revenue and Cost Management
Revenue management is now evolving into a proactive discipline covering cost reduction and optimization as well as
profitability enhancement. TMNG applies its robust revenue management methodologies to all phases of the service activation and
revenue processes and approaches revenue assurance from an end-to-end, order-to-cash perspective. Proprietary toolsets, combined
with in-depth operational expertise and a track record of success have proven to be the winning formula to enable our clients to
generate significant cash flow improvements.
As mentioned, TMNG Global has expanded its suite of revenue assurance assessment tools to include Ascertain®, a flexible,
scalable, configurable revenue management and data integrity toolset that provides timely evaluation of processes, metrics and control
points. A fifth generation platform developed by the revenue assurance experts at Cartesian, Ascertain® is among the industry's most
widely deployed revenue assurance tools in Europe and is able to support fixed, wireless, ISP, data, and content environments.
- Program Management
We have a track record of success in the management, execution and delivery of quality consulting services in a cross-functional
program management environment. We provide independent, impartial, centralized management and governance of a complex series
of inter-related projects using a small group of experienced and dedicated resources. Our approach enables an organization to deliver
projects faster, with higher quality, at less cost and within estimates, to meet — and often — exceed expectations. Our PMO
engagements are supported by a superb track record, proven tool sets and methodologies, a focus on ‘what works' and a keen
understanding of both the financial imperatives of the business and the drivers of customer satisfaction.
- Business and Operations Process Redesign and Reengineering
We provide clients with efficient, integrated business and operational processes, supporting technology systems and web-centric
interfaces across all BSS/OSS applications. Our BSS/OSS approach is holistic, assessing each system and process from the point of
customer acquisition to provisioning, billing, collections and accounts receivable management with a focus on operational efficiency
and optimizing cash flow. We assist companies in taking a proactive approach to reviewing existing business and operating models.
By properly addressing gaps in their process, they have the potential to recover millions of dollars annually.
- Corporate Investment Services
We provide a wide range of services to investment banking and private equity firms in connection with investments and mergers
and acquisitions in the communications industry. Services include evaluation of management teams and business plans, identification
of strengths and weakness of the company, and analyses of the company's financial models, systems, products and operational and
business processes. Post-investment support is also provided to help customers in the optimization of their investment.
- Technical Consultancy & Software Development

We provide technical consultancy and software development specialized for the communications industry. We have vast
experience working with and implementing numerous communications software products. Our expertise includes defining
requirements, data analysis, selecting and implementing mediation, provisioning, billing and inter-operator billing products,
interfacing products within a legacy environment, migrating products, data and customers, and planning, managing and completing
systems and software testing.
We have developed a proprietary suite of software (Ascertain®) to address the revenue assurance and data integrity needs of
communications companies. Ascertain® helps prove rate accuracy, reconcile customer data, analyze and reconcile event records,
prove completeness of processing, and monitor trends and volumes. The Ascertain® suite forms a fully productized and supported set
of solutions that share a common core framework for reporting, user interaction, data extraction and job scheduling.
In 2011, we expanded our Ascertain suite with the launch of SmartXchange, our global managed service offering for device
recapture, and we are currently developing related applications to address the potential market for mobile device leasing.
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- Marketing
We provide a breadth of marketing services to support our clients from strategy, to planning, through execution. Our deep
understanding of the global communications environment and our creative and rigorous analytic techniques enable us to craft winning
marketing strategies and programs for our clients. We see individual business issues in the context of overall industry financial and
value relationships, allowing us to deliver detailed, focused and pragmatic recommendations and blueprints for sustainable impact and
change. We provide program management and project delivery to support execution across the broad spectrum of marketing services
such as Customer Segmentation, Customer Experience Assessment, Product Management, Retail Sales Channel Assessment and
Marketing Communications.
COMPETITION
The market for communications consulting services remains intensely competitive, highly fragmented and rapidly changing. We
face competition from major business and strategy consulting firms, large systems integration and major global outsourcing firms as a
result of the outsourcing of business support systems and operating support systems by communications companies, offshore
development firms from the Asian markets, equipment and software firms that have added service offerings, boutique consulting firms
and customers' internal resources. We believe that there has been a significant increase in recent years in demand for firms that can
bundle business process outsourcing, or BPO, with systems and technical integration. Many of our competitors are large organizations
that provide a broad range of services to companies in many industries, including the communications industry. In addition, we
compete with boutique firms that maintain specialized skills and/or geographical advantages. Many information technology consulting
firms also maintain significant practice groups devoted to the communications industry. Many of these competitors have significantly
greater financial, technical and marketing resources and greater name recognition than us.
We believe that the principal competitive factors in our market include: the ability to provide payback on our services to clients
through proven business cases; the ability to provide innovative solutions; the ability to provide deep and proven expertise and talent;
the ability to provide capability and expertise in delivering complex projects through teams located globally; availability of resources;
price of solutions; industry knowledge; understanding of user experience; and sophisticated project and program management
capability.
We believe we have a competitive advantage due to our exclusive focus on the communications, digital media and technology
industries, and the comprehensive offerings we provide to our customers. We also believe the complementary experience and
expertise of our professionals represents a competitive advantage. With the communications industry experiencing consolidation, the
convergence with media and entertainment, increased bandwidth demands driven by the adoption of consumer devices and social
media, and the migration to cloud computing, we believe our principal competitive factor is our specialized and continual focus on the
communications industry and the ability to develop and deliver solutions that enhance client revenue and asset utilization and provide
return on investment. Our biggest challenge is normally the customer's internal resources and budget constraints. As a result, the most
significant competitive advantage becomes long-term relationships with key client executives that have developed over time from
consistency in responsiveness to their needs, quality and reliability of consultants and deliverables, and an appropriate price/value
formula.
We have experienced reduced demand in certain offerings and a market trend of increased price competition, resulting primarily
from market evolution and large firms with offshore capabilities and the financial resources to aggressively price engagements in
which they have a particular interest in obtaining and the ability to provide technical support and outsourcing. These developments
have required us to focus on decreasing our overall cost structure to align with lower revenue levels and direct our resources toward
our top revenue generating clients in which we are deeply imbedded.
RISKS RELATED TO CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND TECHNOLOGY
The economic outlook, as always, is subject to change and the recent challenges of the financial markets and regulatory
environments have expanded into the broader marketplace and have impacted many sectors. In addition, the rate of change brought
about by new technology within the communications and media sector and related impact on our clients' business models may cause
our clients to cancel or delay consulting initiatives. Our efforts to down-size, when necessary, in a manner intended to mirror a
downturn in economic conditions, could encounter delays and be costly. In addition, global economic change could add to volatility in
foreign exchange rates, result in further reduced demand for our services, cause continued pricing pressure and possible project
cancellations or delays, and possibly create lower revenues and operating margins resulting from price reduction pressures for our
services. Declines in our revenues and gross profits would have a significant impact on our financial results, particularly because a

significant portion of our operating costs are fixed in advance of a particular quarter. In addition, our future revenues and operating
results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on the number, size and scope of projects in which we are engaged, the contractual
terms and degree of completion of such projects, any delays incurred in connection with a project, consultant utilization rates, the use
of estimates to complete ongoing projects, general economic conditions and other factors. Any of these events could materially and
adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.
EMPLOYEES
Our ability to recruit and retain experienced, highly qualified and highly motivated personnel has contributed greatly to our
performance and will be critical in the future. We offer a flexible recruiting model that enhances our ability to attract consultants and
to effectively manage utilization. Our consultants may work as full time or part time employees. We also have relationships with many
independent contracting firms to assist in delivery of consulting solutions. Our current base of independent firms has specialized
expertise in discrete areas of communications, and we typically deploy these firms only when their unique expertise/offering is
required.
During fiscal year 2011, we utilized approximately 476 consultants, representing a combination of employee client service
personnel and independent contracting firms. Of these, 412 were employee consultants and approximately 64 were working on
engagements for us primarily through independent subcontracting firms. In addition to the consultants, we have an administrative staff
of approximately 54 employees in the accounting and finance, marketing, recruiting, information technology, human resources, legal
and administrative areas. As of December 31, 2011, we had 315 total employees, of which 230 were full-time.
BUSINESS SEGMENTS
We identify our segments based on the way management organizes the business to assess performance and make operating
decisions regarding the allocation of resources. In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 280-10, Segment Reporting, we
have concluded that we have two reportable segments: the North America segment and the EMEA segment. The North America
segment is comprised of three operating segments (Strategy, North America Cable and Broadband, and North America Telecom),
which are aggregated into one reportable segment based on the similarity of their economic characteristics. The EMEA segment is a
single reportable, operating segment that encompasses the Company's operational, technology and software consulting operations
outside of North America. Both reportable segments offer management consulting, custom developed software, and technical services.

7

For a discussion of operating results by segment, please see Item 7 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, and Note 6, Business Segments, Major Customers and Significant Group Concentrations of
Credit Risk, in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Since our inception, we have provided services to over a thousand domestic and international customers, primarily
communication service providers and large technology and applications firms serving the communications industry and financial firms
that invest in the sector. In recent years, we have added to our base of customers with cable, media and entertainment clients looking
to leverage communications infrastructure to deliver offerings to the market. We depend on a small number of key customers for a
significant portion of revenues. For fiscal year 2011, three customers accounted for 27%, 15% and 10%, respectively, of our revenues.
No other single customer accounted for 10% or more of our revenues. Also during fiscal year 2011, our top ten customers accounted
for approximately 84% of total revenues. We generally provide discounted pricing for large projects on fixed commitments with longterm customers. Because our clients typically engage services on a project basis, their needs for services vary substantially from
period to period.
We continue to concentrate on large wireline, wireless, and cable MSOs headquartered principally in North America, the United
Kingdom and Western Europe, as well as media and entertainment clients. We seek to offer broad and diversified services to these
customers. We anticipate that operating results will continue to depend on volume services to a relatively small number of customers.
FOREIGN MARKETS
A substantial portion of our business is conducted in foreign markets and a substantial portion of our revenues and costs are
derived from our international business. Our international revenues in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 represented 27.3% of
our total revenues, up from 25.8% in the same period of 2010, primarily as a result of fewer domestic strategy engagements during
fiscal 2011 as compared with fiscal 2010. Our international operations expose us to a number of business and economic risks,
including unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates or fluctuations; our ability to protect our intellectual property; the impact of
foreign laws, regulations and trade customs; U.S. and foreign taxation issues; potential limits on our ability to repatriate foreign
profits; and general political and economic trends, including the potential impact of terrorist attacks or international hostilities. If we
are unable to achieve anticipated levels of revenues from or efficiently manage our international operations, our overall revenues and
profitability may decline.
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Our success is dependent, in part, upon proprietary processes and methodologies. We rely upon a combination of copyright, trade
secret, and trademark law to protect our intellectual property. Additionally, employees and consultants sign non-disclosure agreements
to assist us in protecting our intellectual property.
SEASONALITY
In the past, we have experienced seasonal fluctuations in revenues in the fourth quarter due primarily to the fewer number of
business days because of the holiday periods occurring in that quarter. We continue to experience fluctuations in revenue in the fourth
quarter and with global expansion, may experience fluctuations in summer months and other holiday periods.
WEBSITE ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Our internet website address is www.tmng.com. We make available free of charge through our website all of our filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), including our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish
it to the SEC. The charters of our audit, nominating and compensation committees and our Code of Business Conduct are also
available on our website and in print to any stockholder who requests them.
ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS

Not applicable.

ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.
ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in a 10,400 square foot facility in Overland Park, Kansas. This facility houses the
executive, corporate and administrative offices and is under a lease which expires in August 2013. In addition to the executive offices,
we also lease the following facilities which are primarily utilized by management and consulting personnel.
Location
McLean, Virginia
Boston, Massachusetts
Somerset, New Jersey
London, England

Sq. Feet
4,881
11,763
2,910
11,825

Lease Expiration
July 2019
April 2016
February 2014
November 2015

We have a sublease agreement for 1,370 square feet of office space in the London Gate Street property with a third party through
November 2012.
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ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On January 10, 2012, Richard P. Nespola, our former chief executive officer and former chairman of the board and a current
member of our Board of Directors, filed an action, Richard P. Nespola v. The Management Network Group, Inc., against us with the
American Arbitration Association. In this action, Mr. Nespola claims that we breached his employment agreement and an implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing by: (i) improperly deciding not to renew his employment agreement, and (ii) subsequently
deciding to terminate his employment for cause. Further, Mr. Nespola claims we defamed him by publishing to our Board of Directors
allegedly false reasons for terminating his employment for cause. Mr. Nespola seeks in excess of $1.6 million in damages plus
attorneys’ fees and costs. TMNG denies Mr. Nespola’s allegations, does not believe the action has any merit and intends to defend
against it vigorously. This proceeding is at a preliminary stage and we are unable to reasonably estimate any possible loss or range of
possible loss given the current status of the arbitration and given the inherent uncertainty in predicting any future judicial or arbitration
decision or other resolution of the proceeding. The arbitration is currently stayed pending resolution of Richard P. Nespola v. The
Management Network Group, Inc., and American Arbitration Association, a New York state court action filed by Mr. Nespola
alleging that the American Arbitration Association improperly transferred the arbitration proceedings from New York to Overland
Park, Kansas and requesting that the New York state court overturn the transfer and assign a New York arbitrator. We are currently
opposing this action as well, as we believe the American Arbitration Association decision was valid.
In addition, the Company may become involved in various legal and administrative actions arising in the normal course of
business. These could include actions brought by taxing authorities challenging the employment status of consultants utilized by the
Company. In addition, future customer bankruptcies could result in additional claims on collected balances for professional services
near the bankruptcy filing date. The resolution of any of such actions, claims, or the matters described above may have an impact on
the financial results for the period in which they occur.
ITEM 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
PART II
ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol TMNG. The high and low price per share for the
Common Stock for each quarter of the fiscal years ending December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, in all cases, as adjusted for the
one-for-five reverse common stock split effected on February 7, 2010:
High
First quarter, fiscal year 2011
Second quarter, fiscal year 2011
Third quarter, fiscal year 2011
Fourth quarter, fiscal year 2011

$
$
$
$

First quarter, fiscal year 2010
Second quarter, fiscal year 2010
Third quarter, fiscal year 2010
Fourth quarter, fiscal year 2010

$
$
$
$

Low
2.61
2.88
2.65
2.15

$
$
$
$

2.90
3.40
2.95
3.00

$
$
$
$

High

2.20
2.14
1.96
1.42
Low
1.65
2.03
2.15
2.07

The above information reflects inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or commissions and may not necessarily
represent actual transactions.
As of March 23, 2012, there were approximately 72 holders of record of our Common Stock.
Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared by the Board of Directors out
of funds legally available. To date, we have not paid any cash dividends on our Common Stock and do not expect to declare or pay
any cash or other dividends in the foreseeable future.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we did not sell any unregistered equity securities.
ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable.
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ITEM 7.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Statements included in this discussion that are not statements of current or historical information
may constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements of plans and
objectives, statements of future economic performance or financial projections, statements of assumptions underlying such statements,
and statements of the Company's or management's intentions, hopes, beliefs, expectations or predictions of the future. Forwardlooking statements can often be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as "will be," "should," "could," "plan,"
"estimate," "intend," "continue," "believe," "may," "expect," "hope," "anticipate," "goal" or "forecast," variations thereof or similar
expressions. Certain risks and uncertainties could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in such forward-looking
statements. Factors that might cause a difference include, but are not limited to, conditions in the industry sectors that we serve
(including the delay of client decisions on proposals and project opportunities along with scope reduction of existing projects), overall
economic and business conditions (including the conditions in the credit markets and general economic conditions), our ability to
retain the limited number of large clients that constitute a major portion of our revenues, technological advances and competitive
factors in the markets in which we compete, and the factors identified in the Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Information in Part I of this report. Other factors that we have not identified in this document could also have this effect. All forwardlooking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are made as of the date hereof. We will not necessarily update the
information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K if any forward-looking statement later turns out to be inaccurate.
We report our financial data on a 52/53-week fiscal year for reporting purposes. Fiscal years 2011 and 2010 were both composed
of 52 weeks. For further discussion of our fiscal year end see Item 8, "Consolidated Financial Statements," Note 1 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, "Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies," contained herein.
OVERVIEW
Included in Item 1, "Business" is discussion that includes a general overview of our Business, Market Overview, Business
Strategy, Services and Competition. The purpose of this executive overview is to complement the qualitative discussion of the
Business from Item 1.
TMNG is among the leading providers of professional services and technical solutions to the global leaders in the
communications, digital media, and technology industries. We offer a fully integrated suite of consulting offerings including strategy,
organizational development, knowledge management, marketing, operational, and technology consulting services. We have consulting
experience with almost all major aspects of managing a global communications company. Our portfolio of solutions includes
proprietary methodologies and toolsets, deep industry experience, and hands-on operational expertise and licensed software. These
solutions assist clients in tackling complex business problems.
Our global investments in targeting the cable industry have re-positioned us to better serve consolidating telecommunications
carriers and the converging global media and entertainment companies. The convergence of communications with media and
entertainment, the pace of technological change in the sector, and the consolidation of large telecommunications carriers have required
us to focus our strategy on building a global presence, continuing to expand our offerings with software products and strengthening
our position within the large carriers and media and entertainment companies. Subject to the effects of cyclical economic conditions
our efforts are helping us build what we believe is a more sustainable revenue model over the long-term, which will enable us to
expand our global presence. We continue to focus our efforts on identifying, adapting to and capitalizing on the changing dynamics
prevalent in the converging communications, media and entertainment industries, as well as providing our wireless and IP services
within the communications sector.
In the first quarter of 2012, we established Mobile Device Lease xChange, or MDLx, as a wholly-owned subsidiary to provide
carriers with a viable smartphone leasing offering. MDLx is intended to operate as a third party administration company for wireless
carriers that will provide a comprehensive and integrated business and operating model for mobile device leasing and the complete
technology platform for lease administration and accounting. MDLx provides an end-to-end solution that quickly allows carriers to
reduce the economic impact of handset subsidies while providing consumers with access to more frequent mobile device upgrade
opportunities.
Our financial results are affected by macroeconomic conditions, credit market conditions, and the overall level of business
confidence. Economic volatility has continued to impact our customer base and has resulted in continued higher levels of

unemployment, and significant employee layoffs and reductions in capital and operating expenditures for some of our significant
clients in the communications, media and entertainment sectors. We are also experiencing greater pricing pressure and an increased
need for enhanced return on investment for projects or added sharing of risk and reward.
Revenues are driven by the ability of our team to secure new project contracts and deliver those projects in a way that adds value
to our client in terms of return on investment or assisting clients to address a need or implement change. For fiscal 2011, revenues
decreased 6.2% to $63.1 million from $67.2 million for fiscal 2010 driven primarily by decreased project demand for our strategic
consultative offerings. Our international revenues were approximately 27.3% of total revenues during fiscal 2011 as compared to
25.8% for fiscal 2010. Our revenues are denominated in multiple currencies and are impacted by currency rate fluctuations.
Generally our client relationships begin with a short-term consulting engagement utilizing a few consultants. Our sales strategy
focuses on building long-term relationships with both new and existing clients to gain additional engagements within existing
accounts and referrals for new clients. Strategic alliances with other companies are also used to sell services. We anticipate that we
will continue to pursue these marketing strategies in the future. The volume of work performed for specific clients may vary from
period to period and a major client from one period may not use our services or the same volume of services in another period. In
addition, clients generally may end their engagements with little or no penalty or notice. If a client engagement ends earlier than
expected, we must re-deploy professional service personnel as any resulting non-billable time could harm margins.
Cost of services consists primarily of compensation for consultants who are employees as well as fees paid to independent
contractor organizations and related expense reimbursements. Employee compensation includes certain non-billable time, training,
vacation time, benefits and payroll taxes. Gross margins are primarily impacted by the type of consulting services provided; the size of
service contracts and negotiated discounts; changes in our pricing policies and those of competitors; utilization rates of consultants and
independent subject matter experts; and employee and independent contractor costs, which tend to be higher in a competitive labor
market.
Our gross margin was 37.0% for fiscal 2011 compared with 37.8% for fiscal 2010. In general, the most significant items that
impact our margins include the mix of project types, utilization of personnel and competitive pricing decisions, including volume
discounts. The decrease in gross margin is due primarily to losses incurred on one Ascertain software installation as well as lower staff
utilization in our EMEA Segment, partially offset by a reduction of volume incentive programs in our North America segment.
Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of personnel salaries, bonuses, and related costs for direct client sales efforts and
marketing staff. We primarily use a relationship sales model in which partners, principals and senior consultants generate revenues. In
addition, sales and marketing expenses include costs associated with marketing collateral, product development, trade shows and
advertising. General and administrative expenses consist mainly of costs for accounting, recruiting and staffing, information
technology, personnel, insurance, rent and outside professional services incurred in the normal course of business.
Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2011 were unchanged from fiscal 2010 at $27.1 million. However, selling,
general and administrative expenses increased as a percentage of revenues to 42.9% in fiscal 2011 from 40.3% in fiscal 2010. The
increase in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue is driven by a combination of lower revenues and
higher salary and other personnel related costs, directly impacted by lower utilization. We continue to evaluate selling, general and
administrative expenses to maintain an appropriate cost structure relative to revenue levels, including taking steps to effect significant
selling, general and administrative cost reductions in the first quarter of fiscal year 2012.
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Intangible asset amortization included in operating expenses decreased to $0.5 million in fiscal 2011 from $1.4 million in fiscal
2010. The decrease in amortization expense was due to the completion of amortization of all intangibles recorded in connection with
our acquisitions of Cartesian Ltd and RVA Consulting LLC (“RVA”).
We recorded net losses of $4.4 million and $2.2 million for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. The increase in the net loss
is due to the factors described above. The rate of change in the communications industry, driving convergence of media and
telecommunications, consolidation of smaller providers and expanded deployment of wireless capabilities have added both
opportunity and uncertainty for our clients. The general result is overall reduced client spending on many capital and operational
initiatives. This reduction in spending, coupled with increased competition pursuing fewer opportunities, could result in further price
reductions, fewer client projects, under-utilization of consultants, reduced operating margins and loss of market share. Declines in our
revenues can have a significant impact on our financial results. Although we have a flexible cost base comprised primarily of
employee and related costs, there is a lag in time required to scale the business appropriately if revenues are reduced. In addition, our
future revenues and operating results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on the number, size and scope of projects in which
we are engaged, the contractual terms and degree of completion of such projects, any delays incurred in connection with a project,
consultant utilization rates, general economic conditions and other factors.
We focus on our liquidity position and made significant progress in 2011. Cash and cash equivalents increased by $6.5 million
during fiscal 2011 primarily as a result of our sale of $5.9 million of long-term investments in auction rate securities. From a cash flow
perspective, cash flows provided by operating activities were $1.3 million during fiscal year 2011 while cash flows used in operating
activities were $1.1 million during fiscal year 2010. The significant change in cash flows from operating activities for fiscal year 2011
as compared to fiscal year 2010 was primarily due to changes in working capital.
At December 31, 2011, we had working capital of approximately $18.8 million. Working capital increased by $2.7 million from
January 1, 2011 primarily due to the liquidation of auction rate securities of $5.9 million, partially offset by operating losses.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Our significant accounting policies are summarized in Note 1 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements included in
Item 8 "Consolidated Financial Statements" of this report.
While the selection and application of any accounting policy may involve some level of subjective judgments and estimates, we
believe the following accounting policies are the most critical to our consolidated financial statements, potentially involve the most
subjective judgments in their selection and application, and are the most susceptible to uncertainties and changing conditions:
•

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-lived Assets;

•

Revenue Recognition;

•

Accounting for Income Taxes; and

•

Research and Development and Software Development Costs.

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-lived Assets — As of December 31, 2011, we had $8.0 million in goodwill, which is subject
to periodic review for impairment. FASB ASC 350 "Intangibles-Goodwill and Other" requires an evaluation of indefinite-lived
intangible assets and goodwill annually and whenever events or circumstances indicate that such assets may be impaired. The
evaluation is conducted at the reporting unit level and compares the calculated fair value of the reporting unit to its book value to
determine whether impairment has been deemed to occur. As of December 31, 2011, we have approximately $4.0 million in goodwill
allocated to both the North America Carrier and EMEA reporting units. Any impairment charge would be based on the most recent
estimates of the recoverability of the recorded goodwill. If the remaining book value assigned to goodwill in an acquisition is higher
than the estimated fair value of the reporting unit, there is a requirement to write down these assets.
Fair value of our reporting units is determined using a combination of the income approach and the market approach. The
income approach uses a reporting unit's projection of estimated cash flows discounted using a weighted-average cost of capital
analysis that reflects current market conditions. We also consider the market approach to valuing our reporting units utilizing revenue
and EBITDA multiples. We compare the results of our overall enterprise valuation as determined by the combination of the two
approaches to our market capitalization. Significant management judgments related to these approaches include:

•

Anticipated future cash flows and terminal value for each reporting unit — The income approach to determining fair value
relies on the timing and estimates of future cash flows, including an estimate of terminal value. The projections use
management's estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period including growth rates in revenues and
estimates of expected changes in operating margins. Our projections of future cash flows are subject to change as actual
results are achieved that differ from those anticipated. Because management frequently updates its projections, we would
expect to identify on a timely basis any significant differences between actual results and recent estimates.

•

Selection of an appropriate discount rate — The income approach requires the selection of an appropriate discount rate,
which is based on a weighted average cost of capital analysis. The discount rate is affected by changes in short-term interest
rates and long-term yield as well as variances in the typical capital structure of marketplace participants. The discount rate is
determined based on assumptions that would be used by marketplace participants, and for that reason, the capital structure of
selected marketplace participants was used in the weighted average cost of capital analysis. Given the current volatile
economic conditions, it is possible that the discount rate will fluctuate in the near term.

•

Selection of an appropriate multiple — The market approach requires the selection of an appropriate multiple to apply to
revenues or EBITDA based on comparable guideline company or transaction multiples. It is often difficult to identify
companies or transactions with a similar profile in regards to revenue, geographic operations, risk profile and other factors.
Given the current volatile economic conditions, it is possible that multiples of guideline companies will fluctuate in the near
term.
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As discussed in Note 4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," the
Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on an annual basis on the last day of the first fiscal month of the fourth fiscal quarter and
whenever events or circumstances indicate that these assets may be impaired. The Company performs its impairment testing for
goodwill in accordance with FASB ASC 350 "Intangibles-Goodwill and Other." Based on the results of the annual step one
impairment test, management concluded that there was no impairment of goodwill during fiscal years 2011 and 2010. In addition, due
to the loss of key leadership personnel and results of operations in the EMEA reporting unit during the thirteen weeks ended October
1, 2011, management performed step one of the goodwill impairment evaluation as of October 1, 2011. Based on the results of the
interim step one impairment test, management concluded that the EMEA reporting unit’s carrying amount did not exceed its fair value
as of October 1, 2011 and therefore the reporting unit’s goodwill was deemed not impaired. As of the date of the interim impairment
test, October 1, 2011, and the date of the annual impairment test, the fair values of our North America Carrier and EMEA reporting
units are substantially in excess of their carrying values. In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calculations on the
goodwill impairment test, we applied a hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair value of each reporting unit. Had the estimated fair
values of each reporting unit been lowered by 10% as of October 1, 2011, the fair value of the reporting unit would have still
significantly exceeded the carrying value.
In accordance with FASB ASC 360, "Property, Plant and Equipment," we use our best estimates based upon reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections to review for impairment of finite-lived assets and finite-lived identifiable intangible assets to
be held and used whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of our assets might not be
recoverable.
Revenue Recognition — We recognize revenues from time and materials consulting contracts in the period in which our services
are performed. We recognized $29.1 million and $27.4 million in revenues from time and materials contracts during fiscal years 2011
and 2010, respectively. In addition to time and materials contracts, our other types of contracts include fixed fee contracts. We
recognize revenues on milestone or deliverables-based fixed fee contracts and time and materials contracts not to exceed contract price
using the percentage of completion-like method described by FASB ASC 605-35, "Revenue Recognition — Construction-Type and
Production-Type Contracts". For fixed fee contracts where services are not based on providing deliverables or achieving milestones,
we recognize revenues on a straight-line basis over the period during which such services are expected to be performed. During the
fiscal years 2011 and 2010, we recognized $34.0 million and $39.8 million, respectively, in revenues on fixed fee contracts. In
connection with some fixed fee contracts, we receive payments from customers that exceed recognized revenues. We record the
excess of receipts from customers over recognized revenue as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is classified as a current liability to
the extent it is expected to be earned within twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.
We also develop, install and support customer software in addition to our traditional consulting services. We recognize revenues
in connection with our software sales agreements utilizing the percentage of completion-like method described in FASB ASC 605-35.
These agreements include software right-to-use licenses ("RTU's") and related customization and implementation services. Due to the
long-term nature of software implementation and the extensive software customization based on normal customer specific
requirements, both the RTU and implementation services are treated as a single element for revenue recognition purposes.
The FASB ASC 605-35 percentage-of-completion-like methodology involves recognizing revenue using the percentage of
services completed, on a current cumulative cost to total cost basis, using a reasonably consistent profit margin over the period. Due to
the longer term nature of these projects, developing the estimates of costs often requires significant judgment. Factors that must be
considered in estimating the progress of work completed and ultimate cost of the projects include, but are not limited to, the
availability of labor and labor productivity, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed, and the impact of delayed
performance. If changes occur in delivery, productivity or other factors used in developing the estimates of costs or revenues, we
revise our cost and revenue estimates, which may result in increases or decreases in revenues and costs, and such revisions are
reflected in income in the period in which the facts that give rise to that revision become known.
In addition to the professional services related to the customization and implementation of software, we also provide postcontract support ("PCS") services, including technical support and maintenance services. For those contracts that include PCS service
arrangements which are not essential to the functionality of the software solution, we separate the FASB ASC 605-35 software
services and PCS services utilizing the multiple-element arrangement model prescribed by FASB ASC 605-25, "Revenue Recognition
— Multiple-Element Arrangements". FASB ASC 605-25 addresses the accounting treatment for an arrangement to provide the
delivery or performance of multiple products and/or services where the delivery of a product or system or performance of services
may occur at different points in time or over different periods of time. We utilize FASB ASC 605-25 to separate the PCS service
elements and allocate total contract consideration to the contract elements based on the relative fair value of those elements utilizing

PCS renewal terms as evidence of fair value. Revenues from PCS services are recognized ratably on a straight-line basis over the term
of the support and maintenance agreement.
We also may enter into contingent fee contracts, in which revenue is subject to achievement of savings or other agreed upon
results, rather than time spent. Due to the nature of contingent fee contracts, we recognize costs as they are incurred on the project and
defer revenue recognition until the revenue is realizable and earned as agreed to by our clients. Although these contracts can be very
rewarding, the profitability of these contracts is dependent on our ability to deliver results for our clients and control the cost of
providing these services. These types of contracts are typically more results-oriented and are subject to greater risk associated with
revenue recognition and overall project profitability than traditional time and materials or fixed fee contracts. Revenues associated
with contingent fee contracts were not material during fiscal years 2011 and 2010.
Accounting for Income Taxes — Accounting for income taxes requires significant estimates and judgments on the part of
management. Such estimates and judgments include, but are not limited to, the effective tax rate anticipated to apply to tax differences
that are expected to reverse in the future, the sufficiency of taxable income in future periods to realize the benefits of net deferred tax
assets and net operating losses currently recorded and the likelihood that tax positions taken in tax returns will be sustained on audit.
We account for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740 "Income Taxes." As required by FASB ASC 740, we record
deferred tax assets or liabilities based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using currently
enacted rates that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. FASB ASC 740 also requires that deferred tax assets
be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
As of December 31, 2011, cumulative valuation allowances in the amount of $34.1 million were recorded in connection with the net
deferred income tax assets. As required by FASB ASC 740, we have performed a comprehensive review of our portfolio of uncertain
tax positions in accordance with recognition standards established by the guidance. Pursuant to FASB ASC 740, an uncertain tax
position represents our expected treatment of a tax position taken in a filed tax return, or planned to be taken in a future tax return, that
has not been reflected in measuring income tax expense for financial reporting purposes. As of December 31, 2011, we have no
recorded liability for unrecognized tax benefits.
We have generated substantial deferred income tax assets related to our domestic operations, and to a lesser extent our
international operations, primarily from the accelerated financial statement write-off of goodwill, the charge to compensation expense
taken for stock options and net operating losses. Within our foreign operations, mostly domiciled within the United Kingdom, we have
generated deferred tax assets primarily from the charge to compensation expense for stock options and operating losses. For us to
realize the income tax benefit of these assets in the applicable jurisdiction, we must generate sufficient taxable income in future
periods when such deductions are allowed for income tax purposes. In some cases where deferred taxes were the result of
compensation expense recognized on stock options, our ability to realize the income tax benefit of these assets is also dependent on
our share price increasing to a point where these options have intrinsic value at least equal to the grant date fair value and are
exercised. In assessing whether a valuation allowance is needed in connection with our deferred income tax assets, we have evaluated
our ability to generate sufficient taxable income in future periods to utilize the benefit of the deferred income tax assets. We continue
to evaluate our ability to use recorded deferred income tax asset balances. If we continue to report domestic or international operating
losses for financial reporting in future years in either our domestic or international operations, no additional tax benefit would be
recognized for those losses, since we will not have accumulated enough positive evidence to support our ability to utilize net operating
loss carry-forwards in the future.
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International operations have become a significant part of our business. As part of the process of preparing our financial
statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. We utilize a "cost plus fixed
margin" transfer pricing methodology as it relates to inter-company charges for headquarters support services performed by our
domestic entities on behalf of various foreign affiliates. The judgments and estimates used are subject to challenge by domestic and
foreign taxing authorities. It is possible that such authorities could challenge those judgments and estimates and draw conclusions that
would cause us to incur liabilities in excess of those currently recorded. We use an estimate of our annual effective tax rate at each
interim period based upon the facts and circumstances available at that time, while the actual annual effective tax rate is calculated at
year-end. Changes in the geographical mix or estimated amount of annual pre-tax income could impact our overall effective tax rate.
Research and Development and Software Development Costs — Software development costs are accounted for in accordance
with FASB ASC 985-20, "Software — Costs of Software to Be Sold, Leased, or Marketed." Capitalization of software development
costs for products to be sold to third parties begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility and ceases when the product is
available for general release. The establishment of technological feasibility and the ongoing assessment of recoverability of capitalized
software development costs require considerable judgment by management concerning certain external factors including, but not
limited to, technological feasibility, anticipated future gross revenue, estimated economic life and changes in software and hardware
technologies. We capitalize development costs incurred during the period between the establishment of technological feasibility and
the release of the final product to customers. During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, $569,000 and $595,000, respectively, of these costs
were expensed as incurred. No software development costs were capitalized during either fiscal year 2011 or 2010.
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement – Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The guidance seeks further
convergence of the fair value recognition standards between U.S GAAP and that of the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The ASU contains clarification of certain terminology to match the guidance provided by the IFRS standard, but also provides
more specific guidance related to the treatment of premiums or discounts in the measurement of fair value, among other guidance, as
well as prescribes additional disclosure requirements, including the level in the fair value hierarchy of assets or liabilities that are not
measured at fair value in the balance sheet, but yet have fair value disclosure requirements. This update is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance
will have on the consolidated financial statements.
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which revises the manner in which
entities present comprehensive income in their financial statements by removing the existing options available for the presentation of
comprehensive income but rather requiring comprehensive income to be reported in either a separate continuous statement of
comprehensive income or in a two statement presentation format that would highlight the components of income as the first statement
and then a separate but yet consecutive statement presenting the components and totals of comprehensive income. In December 2011,
the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in ASU No. 2011-05, which indefinitely defers the effective date of certain provisions
under ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income. The amendments in ASU 2011-12 defer the requirement under ASU
2011-05 to present reclassification adjustments by component in both the statement where net income is presented and the statement
where other comprehensive income is presented. This deferral was prompted by constituents’ concerns that the presentation
requirements would be costly to implement and could add unnecessary complexity to financial statements. All other requirements in
ASU 2011-05 remain effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The
Company currently presents comprehensive income in accordance with this standard.
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Testing Goodwill for Impairment. The
ASU includes changes to the accounting guidance for the purpose of simplifying the approach to test goodwill for impairment. The
guidance allows an entity to first assess whether facts or circumstances at an interim date indicate that there is greater than 50%
likelihood that a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value. If the totality of the facts and circumstances, in management’s
judgment, do not result in greater than 50% likelihood, the goodwill impairment testing need not be performed. Likewise, the
guidance also allows for entities to perform the goodwill impairment test at an interim date without considering the qualitative facts
and circumstances that, when taken together, may indicate that a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value. The
amendment is effective for goodwill impairment tests performed for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FISCAL 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2010
REVENUES
Revenues decreased $4.1 million, or 6.2%, to $63.1 million for fiscal year 2011 from $67.2 million for fiscal year 2010. The
reduction in revenues was primarily related to our North American segment which had lower revenues from strategy engagements,
partially offset by an increase in management consulting projects and revenues from telecommunications carriers.
North America Segment — North America segment revenues decreased $3.4 million or 6.6%, to $47.8 million for fiscal year
2011 from $51.2 million for fiscal year 2010. This decrease in revenues is primarily due to a reduction in strategic consulting. During
fiscal year 2011, this segment provided services on 169 customer projects, compared to 173 projects performed in fiscal year 2010.
Average revenue per project was $283,000 and $296,000 for fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively.
Revenues recognized in connection with fixed price engagements totaled $26.3 million and $29.3 million, representing 55.1% and
57.3% of total revenues of the segment, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively.
EMEA Segment — Revenues of $15.3 million and $16.0 million were generated for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. All
revenues were generated internationally. The decrease in revenues for fiscal year 2011 as compared to the 2010 period is primarily
due to a decline in demand for technology and software services. During fiscal year 2011 and 2010, this segment provided services on
142 and 184 customer projects, respectively. Average software and services revenue per project was approximately $88,000 and
$73,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. Revenues from post-contract support services were approximately $2.8 million
and $2.6 million for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. There were no material revenues from software licensing during fiscal
years 2011 and 2010.
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COST OF SERVICES
Costs of services decreased 5.0% to $39.8 million for fiscal year 2011 compared to $41.8 million for fiscal year 2010. Our gross
margin was 37.0% for fiscal year 2011, compared to 37.8% for fiscal year 2010. Cost of services during fiscal year 2011 were
$28.7 million and $11.1 million in our North America and EMEA segments, respectively. Cost of services during fiscal year 2010
were $31.0 million and $10.8 million in our North America and EMEA segments, respectively. Our North America segment gross
margin was 40.1% for fiscal year 2011 compared to 39.4% for fiscal year 2010. The increase in gross margin in 2011 as compared to
the same period of 2010 in our North America segment is primarily due to a reduction of volume incentive programs. Our EMEA
segment gross margin was 27.3% for fiscal year 2011 compared to 32.6% for fiscal year 2010. Margin reductions in the EMEA
segment are primarily related to losses incurred on one Ascertain software installation as well as lower staff utilization. Costs of
services in the EMEA segment included amortization of intangible assets of $581,000 for fiscal year 2010 related to acquired
software. There was no amortization of intangible assets in cost of services during fiscal year 2011.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses decreased by $0.9 million, or 3.3%, to $27.6 million for fiscal year 2011 from $28.5 million for fiscal year
2010. Operating expenses for both periods included selling, general and administrative expenses (inclusive of share-based
compensation) and intangible asset amortization.
Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2011 were unchanged from fiscal 2010 at $27.1 million. As a percentage
of revenues, our selling, general and administrative expense was 42.9% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
40.3% for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues is driven by lower revenues. We continue to evaluate alignment of costs to revenues for each operating segment.
Intangible asset amortization decreased by $0.9 million to $0.5 million for fiscal year 2011, compared to $1.4 million for fiscal
year 2010. The decrease in amortization expense was due to the completion of amortization of all intangibles recorded in connection
with acquisitions.
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Interest income was $63,000 and $193,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively, and represented interest earned on
invested balances. Interest income decreased during fiscal year 2011 as compared to fiscal year 2010 due primarily to reductions in
invested balances and interest rates. Subsequent to the liquidation of our auction rate securities in April 2011 and as of December 31,
2011, we primarily invest in money market funds. For fiscal year 2011, other income includes $312,000 in realized losses on the sale
of auction rate securities classified as available for sale. For fiscal year 2010, other income includes $342,000 in realized holding gains
for auction rate securities classified as trading securities, offset by realized losses on our ARS Rights of $286,000. In addition, other
income for fiscal year 2010 includes $50,000 in realized holding losses for auction rate securities classified as available for sale that
were sold during the period.
INCOME TAXES
We recorded income tax benefits of $79,000 and $710,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. The income tax benefit
in both fiscal years is primarily related to the release of reserves related to uncertain income tax positions due to the expiration of
statutes of limitations, partially offset by deferred taxes recognized on intangibles amortized for income tax purposes but not for
financial reporting purposes. In addition, the benefit in fiscal year 2010 was partially offset by interest recognized on reserves for
uncertain tax positions. For both fiscal years, we recorded no income tax benefit related to our domestic and international pre-tax
losses in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 740, "Income Taxes", which requires an estimation of our ability to use
recorded deferred income tax assets. We currently have recorded a valuation allowance against all domestic and international deferred
income tax assets generated due to uncertainty about their ultimate realization due to our history of operating losses. If we continue to
report net operating losses for financial reporting in either our domestic or international operations, no additional tax benefit would be
recognized for those losses, since we will not have accumulated enough positive evidence to support our ability to utilize the net
operating loss carryforwards in the future.
NET LOSS

We had a net loss of $4.4 million for fiscal year 2011, compared to a net loss of $2.2 million for fiscal year 2010. This increase
in net loss is primarily attributable to a decrease in revenues and related gross profit.
STATEMENT REGARDING NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASUREMENT
In addition to net loss and net loss per share on a GAAP basis, TMNG Global's management uses a non-GAAP financial
measure, "Non-GAAP adjusted net income or loss," in its evaluation of our performance, particularly when comparing performance to
the prior year's period and on a sequential basis. This non-GAAP measure contains certain non-GAAP adjustments which are
described in the following schedule entitled "Reconciliation of GAAP Net Loss to Non-GAAP Adjusted Net Income." In making
these non-GAAP adjustments, we take into account certain non-cash expenses and benefits, including tax effects as applicable, and the
impact of certain items that are generally not expected to be on-going in nature or that are unrelated to our core operations.
Management believes the exclusion of these items provides a useful basis for evaluating underlying business performance, but should
not be considered in isolation and is not in accordance with, or a substitute for, evaluating our performance utilizing GAAP financial
information. We believe that providing such adjusted results allows investors and other users of our financial statements to better
understand TMNG Global's comparative operating performance for the periods presented. TMNG Global's non-GAAP measure may
differ from similar measures by other companies, even if similar terms are used to identify such measures. Although TMNG Global's
management believes the non-GAAP financial measure is useful in evaluating the performance of its business, TMNG Global
acknowledges that items excluded from such measure have a material impact on our net loss and net loss per share calculated in
accordance with GAAP. Therefore, management uses non-GAAP measures in conjunction with GAAP results. Investors and other
users of our financial information should also consider the above factors when evaluating TMNG Global's results.
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RECONCILIATION OF GAAP NET LOSS TO NON-GAAP ADJUSTED NET INCOME (LOSS)
(unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)
Fifty-Two

Fifty-Two

Weeks Ended

Weeks Ended

December 31,

January 1, 2011

2011
Reconciliation of GAAP net loss to non-GAAP adjusted net income
(loss):
GAAP net loss

$

Realized loss (gain) on auction rate securities
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash share based compensation expense
Tax effect of applicable non-GAAP adjustments
Adjustments to GAAP net loss

(4,416) $
312
1,358
108
120
1,898

(2,193)
(6)
2,769
305
128
3,196

Non-GAAP adjusted net (loss) income

$

(2,518) $

1,003

Reconciliation of GAAP net loss per diluted common share to nonGAAP adjusted net income (loss) per diluted common share:
GAAP net loss per diluted common share

$

(0.62) $

(0.31)

Realized loss (gain) on auction rate securities
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash share based compensation expense
Tax effect of applicable non-GAAP adjustments
Adjustments to GAAP net loss per diluted common share
Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) per diluted common share
Weighted average shares used in calculation of diluted net loss per common
share

0.04
0.19
0.01
0.02
0.26
$

(0.36) $
7,082

(0.00)
0.39
0.04
0.02
0.45
0.14
7,049

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Net cash provided by operating activities was $1.3 million for fiscal year 2011 while net cash used in operating activities was
$1.1 million for fiscal year 2010. Cash flows provided by or (used in) the results of operations (after adding back non-cash items to
our net loss and before changes in working capital) were $(2.5) million and $0.9 million for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The significant change in cash flows from operating activities for fiscal year 2011 as compared to fiscal year 2010 was primarily due
to changes in working capital.
Net cash provided by investing activities was $5.2 million for both fiscal years 2011 and 2010. Investing activities included
proceeds from sales of marketable securities of $5.9 million and $6.5 million for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. Investing
activities also included $0.7 million and $0.9 million in fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to the purchase of office
equipment, software and computer equipment. In addition, investing activities for fiscal year 2010 included $0.3 million in earn-out
payments related to the acquisition of RVA.

Net cash used in financing activities was $29,000 and $3.5 million for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. Financing
activities included $2.6 million and $0.9 million in proceeds from line of credit borrowings in fiscal years 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Financing activities also included $2.6 million and $3.7 million in repayments on lines of credit in fiscal years 2011 and
2010, respectively. In addition, payments on long-term obligations of $61,000 and $0.7 million were made in fiscal years 2011 and
2010, respectively while proceeds of $32,000 and $38,000 were received in fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively, for stock
purchases made under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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At December 31, 2011, we had approximately $13.3 million in cash and cash equivalents ($2.5 million of which was
denominated in British pounds sterling) and $18.8 million in net working capital. We believe we have sufficient cash and cash
equivalents to meet anticipated cash requirements, including anticipated capital expenditures for at least the next 12 months.
Furthermore, based on an analysis of our investments classified as cash equivalents, we do not believe that we have any material risk
related to the liquidity or valuation of these investments, nor do we believe that we have any counterparty credit risk related to these
investments. Should our cash and cash equivalents prove insufficient, we may need to obtain new debt or equity financing to support
our operations or complete acquisitions. In recent years, credit and capital markets have experienced unusual volatility and disruption.
If we need to obtain new debt or equity financing to support our operations or complete acquisitions in the future, we may be unable to
obtain debt or equity financing on reasonable terms. We have established a flexible model that provides a lower fixed cost structure
than most consulting firms, enabling us to scale operating cost structures more quickly based on market conditions, although there is a
lag in time required to scale the business appropriately if revenues are reduced. Our strong balance sheet has enabled us to make
acquisitions and related investments in intellectual property and businesses we believe are enabling us to capitalize on the current
transformation of the industry; however, if demand for our consulting services is reduced and we experience negative cash flow, we
could experience liquidity challenges at some point in the future.
FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
During fiscal year 2009, we entered into an agreement under which we have a commitment to purchase a minimum of $401,000
in computer software over a three year period. As of December 31, 2011, we have an obligation of $21,000 remaining under this
commitment. During March 2012, this purchase agreement was renewed. Under the renewal, we have a commitment to purchase a
minimum of $285,000 in computer software over a three year period.
During fiscal year 2010, we entered into an agreement to purchase telecommunications equipment in the amount of $99,000. As
of December 31, 2011, we have an obligation of $64,000 remaining under this commitment.
On February 12, 2012, the independent members of our Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company , upon the
recommendation of the Compensation Committee of the Board, approved an executive incentive compensation plan for fiscal year
2012 (the “Plan”). The Plan establishes a cash bonus pool (the “Pool”) for certain members of the Company's management team,
including the Company’s named executive officers other than the Executive Chairman, if the Company earns at least $2,750,000 of
non-GAAP EBITDA in fiscal year 2012 (“2012 Non-GAAP EBITDA”). The calculation of 2012 Non-GAAP EBITDA excludes noncash charges (e.g., share-based compensation expense) and may exclude extraordinary one-time items to the extent determined to be
appropriate by the Compensation Committee. The amount available for payment from the Pool (“Payout Amount”) shall be a
specified lump sum amount at certain thresholds of 2012 Non-GAAP EBITDA (as reduced by the Payout Amount) per the following
schedule:
Non-GAAP EBITDA

$
$
$
$
$
$

(Post Bonus) Exceeds
2,750,000
3,025,000
3,300,000
3,630,000
3,970,000
4,310,000

Payout Amount

$
$
$
$
$
$

450,000
575,000
700,000
770,000
830,000
890,000

In no event will the Payout Amount exceed $890,000. The distribution of the Payout Amount, if any, among the Company’s
participants will be determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee and/or independent directors at a later date. The Plan is
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 28, 2012.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
See Note 10, “Loan to Officer,” for information regarding related party transactions.
ITEM 7A.

QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.
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ITEM 8.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Management Network Group, Inc.
Overland Park, Kansas
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Management Network Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
loss, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the 52-week periods ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company at December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 52-week periods ended
December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Kansas City, Missouri
March 30, 2012
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THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

January 1,

2011
2011
(In thousands, except share
data)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts receivable — billed & unbilled
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Net receivables
Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Identifiable intangible assets, net
Non-current investments
Other assets
Total Assets

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Trade accounts payable
$
Accrued payroll, bonuses and related expenses
Deferred revenue
Other accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock:
Voting — $.005 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; 7,533,872 (including 440,000
treasury shares) and 7,513,330 (including 440,000 treasury shares) shares issued as of
December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively; 7,093,872 and 7,073,330 shares
outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively
Preferred stock — $.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or
outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Treasury stock, at cost
Accumulated other comprehensive income —

13,250

$

6,786

11,644
(216)
11,428
755
25,433

16,731
(200)
16,531
1,173
24,490

1,653
7,995
206
35,287

1,983
7,993
496
5,926
207
41,095

908
4,147
287
1,297
6,639

$

$

995
5,087
860
1,453
8,395

366
461
827

246
737
983

38

38

177,215
(141,557)
(3,545)

177,075
(137,141)
(3,545)

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Loss on investments
Total stockholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

$

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(4,330)
27,821
35,287 $

(4,386)
(324)
31,717
41,095

THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Fifty-Two

Fifty-Two

Weeks Ended

Weeks Ended

December 31,

January 1,

2011
2011
(In thousands, except per share
data)
Revenues
Cost of services
Gross Profit
Operating Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Intangible asset amortization
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Other (loss) income, net
Total other (expense) income
Loss before income taxes
Income tax benefit
Net loss

$

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gain on marketable securities
Comprehensive loss
Net loss per common share
Basic and diluted
Weighted average shares used in calculation of net loss per share:
Basic and diluted
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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63,088
39,756
23,332

$

67,243
41,849
25,394

27,067
496
27,563
(4,231)
63
(15)
(312)
(264)
(4,495)
79
(4,416)

27,108
1,392
28,500
(3,106)
193
(16)
26
203
(2,903)
710
(2,193)

$

56
324
(4,036) $

(594)
74
(2,713)

$

(0.62) $

(0.31)

7,082

7,049

THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Year Ended
December 31,
January 1,
2011
2011
(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation
Deferred tax expense
Realized loss (gain) on marketable securities
Other
Other changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid and other assets
Trade accounts payable
Income tax liabilities
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in ) operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from maturities/sales of marketable securities
Acquisition of businesses
Acquisition of property and equipment
Net cash provided by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings on line of credit
Payments on line of credit
Payments made on unfavorable and other contractual obligations
Issuance of common stock through employee stock purchase plan
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

(4,416) $

(2,193)

1,358
108
120
312
-

2,769
305
128
(6)
(63)

5,174
420
(77)
(183)
(577)
(968)
1,271

(954)
206
(87)
(856)
(129)
(265)
(1,145)

5,938
(708)
5,230

6,450
(344)
(888)
5,218

2,625
(2,625)
(61)
32
(29)

880
(3,680)
(713)
38
(3,475)

(8)

(113)

6,464
6,786

485
6,301

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

13,250

$

6,786

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during period for interest

$

15

$

16

Net cash refunded during period for income taxes

$

(16) $

(77)

$

100

278

Accrued property and equipment additions
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing transactions

$

Acquisition of business: Common stock

$
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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-

$

53

THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock $.005 Par

Additional

Voting
Shares
Balance, January 2, 2010
Shares issued for employee stock purchase plan
Share-based compensation
Common stock issued for acquisitions
Other comprehensive income — Foreign
currency translation adjustment
Other comprehensive income — Loss on
marketable securities
Net loss

7,468,310
25,280

Balance, January 1, 2011

7,513,330

Shares issued for employee stock purchase plan
Stock option exercise
Share-based compensation
Other comprehensive income — Foreign
currency translation adjustment
Other comprehensive income — Loss on
marketable securities
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2011

Amount
$

37
1

19,740

Accumulated

Paid In
Accumulated
Treasury
Capital
Deficit
Stock
(In thousands, except share data)
$ 176,680 $
(134,948) $
(3,545)
37
305
53

Other
Comprehensive
Income
$

(4,190)

Total
$

(594)
74

74

(2,193)
$

38

20,042
500

$ 177,075

$

(137,141)

(2,193)
$

(3,545)

$

(4,710)

$

32

56
324

324

(4,416)
$

38

$ 177,215

$

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(141,557)

31,717
32
—
108
56

108

7,533,872

34,034
38
305
53
(594)

(4,416)
$

(3,545)

$

(4,330)

$

27,821

THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations — The Management Network Group, Inc. ("TMNG" or the "Company") was founded in 1990 as a
management consulting firm specializing in providing consulting services to the converging communications industry and the
financial services firms that support it. A majority of the Company's revenues are from customers in the United States, United
Kingdom, and Western Europe. TMNG's corporate offices are located in Overland Park, Kansas.
Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TMNG and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Name of Subsidiary/Acquisition
TMNG Europe Ltd. ("TMNG Europe")
The Management Network Group Canada Ltd. ("TMNG Canada")
TMNG.com, Inc.
TMNG Marketing, LLC
TMNG Technologies, Inc.
Cambridge Strategic Management Group, Inc. ("CSMG")
Cambridge Adventis Ltd.
Cartesian Ltd. ("Cartesian")
RVA Consulting, LLC ("RVA")
TWG Consulting, Inc.
Mobile Device Lease xChange, LLC (“MDLx”)

Date Formed/Acquired
March 19, 1997
May 14, 1998
June 18, 1999
September 5, 2000
August 27, 2001
March 6, 2002
March 17, 2006
January 2, 2007
August 3, 2007
October 5, 2007
November 8, 2011

Fiscal Year — The Company reports its operating results on a 52/53-week fiscal year basis. The fiscal year end is determined as
the Saturday ending nearest December 31. The fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 each include 52 weeks of
operating results and consists of four equal 13-week quarters. The fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 are
referred to herein as fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Reverse Stock Split — On January 21, 2010, TMNG's stockholders approved a one-for-five reverse stock split of the Company's
authorized, issued and outstanding common stock. The reverse stock split was effective on February 7, 2010. Trading of TMNG's
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on a split-adjusted basis began at the open of trading on February 8, 2010. The reverse
stock split affected all shares of the Company's common stock, as well as options to purchase the Company's common stock, that were
outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of the reverse stock split. All references to common shares and per-share data for
prior periods have been retroactively restated to reflect the reverse stock split as if it had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
period presented. The par value of the Company's common stock was changed to $.005 per share from $.001 per share in connection
with the reverse split.
Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. As described in further detail below,
significant estimates include the estimates of costs to complete used to recognize revenues on fixed fee contracts and estimates utilized
in measuring the fair value of our reporting units with goodwill.
Revenue Recognition — The Company recognizes revenue from time and materials consulting contracts in the period in which
its services are performed. In addition to time and materials contracts, the Company's other types of contracts include fixed fee
contracts and contingent fee contracts. The Company recognizes revenues on milestone or deliverables-based fixed fee contracts and
time and materials contracts not to exceed contract price using the percentage of completion-like method described by Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 605-35, "Revenue Recognition — ConstructionType and Production-Type Contracts." For fixed fee contracts where services are not based on providing deliverables or achieving
milestones, the Company recognizes revenue on a straight-line basis over the period during which such services are expected to be
performed. In connection with some fixed fee contracts, the Company may receive payments from customers that exceed revenues

recognized related to the contracts up to that point in time. The Company records the excess of receipts from customers over
recognized revenue as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is classified as a current liability to the extent it is expected to be earned
within twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.
The Company develops, installs and supports customer software in addition to the provision of traditional consulting services.
The Company recognizes revenue in connection with its software sales agreements utilizing the percentage of completion method
prescribed by ASC 605- 35. These agreements include software right-to-use licenses ("RTU's") and related customization and
implementation services. Due to the long-term nature of the software implementation and the extensive software customization based
on normal customer specific requirements, both the RTU and implementation services are treated as a single element for revenue
recognition purposes.
The FASB ASC 605-35 percentage-of-completion-like methodology involves recognizing revenue using the percentage of
services completed, on a current cumulative cost to total cost basis, using a reasonably consistent profit margin over the period. Due to
the longer term nature of these projects, developing the estimates of costs often requires significant judgment. Factors that must be
considered in estimating the progress of work completed and ultimate cost of the projects include, but are not limited to, the
availability of labor and labor productivity, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed, and the impact of delayed
performance. If changes occur in delivery, productivity or other factors used in developing the estimates of costs or revenues, the
Company revises its cost and revenue estimates, which may result in increases or decreases in revenues and costs, and such revisions
are reflected in income in the period in which the facts that give rise to that revision become known.
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In addition to the professional services related to the customization and implementation of its software, the Company may also
provide post-contract support ("PCS") services, including technical support and maintenance services as well as other professional
services not essential to the functionality of the software. For those contracts that include PCS service arrangements which are not
essential to the functionality of the software solution, the Company separates the FASB ASC 605-35 software services and PCS
services utilizing the multiple-element arrangement model prescribed by FASB ASC 605-25, "Revenue Recognition — MultipleElement Arrangements ". FASB ASC 605-25 addresses the accounting treatment for an arrangement to provide the delivery or
performance of multiple products and/or services where the delivery of a product or system or performance of services may occur at
different points in time or over different periods of time. The Company utilizes FASB ASC 605-25 to separate the PCS service
elements and allocate total contract consideration to the contract elements based on the relative fair value of those elements utilizing
PCS renewal terms as evidence of fair value. Revenues from PCS services are recognized ratably on a straight-line basis over the term
of the support and maintenance agreement.
The Company may also enter into contingent fee contracts, in which revenue is subject to achievement of savings or other agreed
upon results, rather than time spent. Due to the nature of contingent fee contracts, the Company recognizes costs as they are incurred
on the project and defers revenue recognition until the revenue is realizable and earned as agreed to by its clients. Although these
contracts can be very rewarding, the profitability of these contracts is dependent on the Company's ability to deliver results for its
clients and control the cost of providing these services. These types of contracts are typically more results-oriented and are subject to
greater risk associated with revenue recognition and overall project profitability than traditional time and materials contracts.
Revenues associated with contingent fee contracts were not material during fiscal years 2011 and 2010.
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less when purchased.
Marketable Securities — Non-current investments, which consisted of auction rate securities, are accounted for under the
provisions of FASB ASC 320, "Investments-Debt and Equity Securities." Management evaluates the appropriate classification of
marketable securities at each balance sheet date. These investments are reported at fair value, as measured pursuant to FASB ASC
820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures." These securities were considered to be "available-for-sale." Consequently, any
temporary unrealized gains and losses are included as a separate component of stockholders' equity, net of applicable taxes.
Additionally, realized gains and losses, changes in value judged to be other-than-temporary, interest and dividends are also included in
the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss, net of applicable taxes. The Company does not have
any marketable securities as of December 31, 2011.
Fair Value Measurement — For cash and cash equivalents, current trade receivables and current trade payables, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these items.
The Company utilizes the methods of fair value measurement as described in FASB ASC 820 to value its financial assets and
liabilities. As defined in FASB ASC 820, fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In order to increase consistency and
comparability in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and
unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels, which are described below:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs.
Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value hierarchy gives the lowest
priority to Level 3 inputs.
In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible as well as considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value.
Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost or acquisition date fair value less accumulated depreciation
and amortization. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets and is computed using the straight-line method, and capital leases, if any, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life

of the lease. Asset lives range from three to seven years for furniture and fixtures, software and computer equipment. Leasehold
improvements are capitalized and amortized over the life of the lease or useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter.
Research and Development and Software Development Costs — Software development costs are accounted for in accordance
with FASB ASC 985-20, "Software — Costs of Software to Be Sold, Leased, or Marketed." Capitalization of software development
costs for products to be sold to third parties begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility and ceases when the product is
available for general release. The establishment of technological feasibility and the ongoing assessment of recoverability of capitalized
software development costs require considerable judgment by management concerning certain external factors including, but not
limited to the date technological feasibility is reached, anticipated future gross revenue, estimated economic life and changes in
software and hardware technologies. The Company capitalizes development costs incurred during the period between the
establishment of technological feasibility and the release of the final product to customers if such costs are material. During fiscal
years 2011 and 2010, $569,000 and $595,000, respectively, of these costs were expensed as incurred. No software development costs
were capitalized during either fiscal year 2011 or 2010.
Goodwill — The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 350, "Intangibles-Goodwill
and Other." Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in business combinations
accounted for as purchases. The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on an annual basis on the last day of the first fiscal
month of the fourth fiscal quarter and whenever events or circumstances indicate that these assets may be impaired. The annual
impairment test for fiscal year 2011 was performed as of October 29, 2011. In addition, due to the loss of key leadership personnel and
results of operations in the EMEA reporting unit during the thirteen weeks ended October 1, 2011, management performed step one of
the goodwill impairment evaluation as of October 1, 2011. Based on the results of the interim step one impairment test, management
concluded that the EMEA reporting unit’s carrying amount did not exceed its fair value as of October 1, 2011 and therefore the
reporting unit’s goodwill was deemed not impaired. The Company determines impairment by comparing the net assets of each
reporting unit to its respective fair value. In the event a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that
the reporting unit goodwill may be impaired. In this situation, the Company must determine the implied fair value of goodwill by
assigning the reporting unit's fair value to each asset and liability of the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of the reporting
unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment loss is measured by the
difference between the goodwill carrying value and the implied fair value.
Fair value of the Company’s reporting units is determined using a combination of the income approach and the market approach.
The income approach uses a reporting unit's projection of estimated cash flows discounted using a weighted-average cost of capital
analysis that reflects current market conditions. The Company also considers the market approach to valuing its reporting units
utilizing revenue and EBITDA multiples. The Company compares the results of its overall enterprise valuation as determined by the
combination of the two approaches to the Company’s market capitalization. Significant management judgments related to these
approaches include:
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•

Anticipated future cash flows and terminal value for each reporting unit — The income approach to determining
fair value relies on the timing and estimates of future cash flows, including an estimate of terminal value. The
projections use management's estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period including
growth rates in revenues and estimates of expected changes in operating margins. The Company’s projections of
future cash flows are subject to change as actual results are achieved that differ from those anticipated. Because
management frequently updates its projections, the Company would expect to identify on a timely basis any
significant differences between actual results and recent estimates.

•

Selection of an appropriate discount rate — The income approach requires the selection of an appropriate
discount rate, which is based on a weighted average cost of capital analysis. The discount rate is affected by
changes in short-term interest rates and long-term yield as well as variances in the typical capital structure of
marketplace participants. The discount rate is determined based on assumptions that would be used by
marketplace participants, and for that reason, the capital structure of selected marketplace participants was used in
the weighted average cost of capital analysis. Given the current volatile economic conditions, it is possible that the
discount rate will fluctuate in the near term.

•

Selection of an appropriate multiple — The market approach requires the selection of an appropriate multiple to
apply to revenues or EBITDA based on comparable guideline company or transaction multiples. It is often
difficult to identify companies or transactions with a similar profile in regards to revenue, geographic operations,
risk profile and other factors. Given the current volatile economic conditions, it is possible that multiples of
guideline companies will fluctuate in the near term.

In accordance with FASB ASC 360, "Property, Plant and Equipment," the Company uses its best estimates based upon
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections to review for impairment of finite-lived assets and finite-lived identifiable
intangibles to be held and used whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of its assets might not
be recoverable.
Intangible Assets — Intangible assets are stated at cost or acquisition date fair value less accumulated amortization. As of
December 31, 2011 all intangible assets have been completely amortized while intangibles as of January 1, 2011 represent customer
relationships acquired in the purchase of RVA.
Income Taxes — The Company recognizes a liability or asset for the deferred tax consequences of temporary differences
between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements. A valuation allowance is provided
when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The
Company recognizes the financial statement effect of a tax position when, based on the technical merits of the uncertain tax position,
it is more likely than not to be sustained on a review by taxing authorities. These estimates are based on judgments made with
currently available information. The Company reviews these estimates and makes changes to recorded amounts of uncertain tax
positions as facts and circumstances warrant.
Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation — TMNG Europe, Cartesian and the international operations of CSMG conduct
business primarily denominated in their respective local currency, which is their functional currency. Assets and liabilities have been
translated to U.S. dollars at the period-end exchange rates. Revenue and expenses have been translated at exchange rates which
approximate the average of the rates prevailing during each period. Translation adjustments are reported as a separate component of
other comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of stockholders' equity. Accumulated other comprehensive loss resulting
from foreign currency translation adjustments totaled $4.3 million and $4.4 million, respectively as of December 31, 2011 and January
1, 2011, and is included in Total Stockholders’ Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Assets and liabilities denominated in other
than the functional currency of a subsidiary are re-measured at rates of exchange on the balance sheet date. Resulting gains and losses
on foreign currency transactions are included in the Company’s results of operations. Realized and unrealized exchange losses
included in results of operations were $46,000 and $19,000 during fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Derivative Financial Instruments — There were no open foreign currency forward contracts as of December 31, 2011. The
Company may use forward contracts to provide an economic hedge of fluctuations in accounts receivable denominated in currencies
other than its functional currencies, but has not designated such contracts as hedges for accounting purposes. The Company utilizes
valuation models for this forward contract that rely exclusively on Level 2 inputs, as defined by the Financial Accounting Standards

Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures. Gains and losses on
foreign currency forward contracts are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss. The change in fair value of foreign currency contracts was not material to the Company's results
of operations or financial position for fiscal year 2011 or 2010.
Share-Based Compensation — The Company accounts for stock based compensation using the provisions of FASB ASC 718,
"Compensation-Stock Compensation" and the SEC's Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110 ("SAB No. 110") which require the
measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based on estimated fair values. The
Company values its stock options using the Black-Scholes model to determine fair value. See Note 5, Share-Based Compensation.
Loss Per Share — The Company calculates and presents earnings (loss) per share using a dual presentation of basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per share. Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. The weighted average number of common shares outstanding excludes treasury shares
purchased by the Company. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed in the same manner except the weighted average number of
shares is increased for dilutive securities.
In accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 260, "Earnings per Share," the Company uses the treasury stock method for
calculating the dilutive effect of employee stock options and nonvested shares. These instruments will have a dilutive effect under the
treasury stock method only when the respective period's average market value of the underlying Company common stock exceeds the
actual proceeds. In applying the treasury stock method, assumed proceeds include the amount, if any, the employee must pay upon
exercise, the amount of compensation cost for future services that the Company has not yet recognized, and the amount of tax benefits,
if any, that would be credited to additional paid-in capital assuming exercise of the options and the vesting of nonvested shares. The
Company has not included the effect of stock options of 670,192 and 888,530 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively, and shares
of nonvested stock of 375 in the calculation of diluted loss per share for fiscal year 2010, as the Company reported a net loss for these
periods and the effect would have been anti-dilutive.
Reclassifications – The Company has reclassified certain 2010 balances on the consolidated balance sheet as of January 1, 2011
to conform to the presentation in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011. The Company has combined the
presentation of accounts receivable billed and unbilled as one line item. The Company has also combined the presentation of other
accrued liabilities and unfavorable and other contractual obligations in single line items in both the current and noncurrent liabilities
sections. In addition, the Company has combined the changes in accounts receivable and unbilled receivables in the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the fiscal year 2010 to conform with the fiscal year 2011 presentation.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-04, Fair
Value Measurement – Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and
IFRS. The guidance seeks further convergence of the fair value recognition standards between U.S GAAP and that of the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The ASU contains clarification of certain terminology to match the guidance provided by the
IFRS standard, but also provides more specific guidance related to the treatment of premiums or discounts in the measurement of fair
value, among other guidance, as well as prescribes additional disclosure requirements, including the level in the fair value hierarchy of
assets or liabilities that are not measured at fair value in the balance sheet, but yet have fair value disclosure requirements. This update
is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that
the adoption of this guidance will have on the consolidated financial statements.
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which revises the manner in which
entities present comprehensive income in their financial statements by removing the existing options available for the presentation of
comprehensive income but rather requiring comprehensive income to be reported in either a separate continuous statement of
comprehensive income or in a two statement presentation format that would highlight the components of income as the first statement
and then a separate but yet consecutive statement presenting the components and totals of comprehensive income. In December 2011,
the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in ASU No. 2011-05, which indefinitely defers the effective date of certain provisions
under ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income. The amendments in ASU 2011-12 defer the requirement under ASU
2011-05 to present reclassification adjustments by component in both the statement where net income is presented and the statement
where other comprehensive income is presented. This deferral was prompted by constituents’ concerns that the presentation
requirements would be costly to implement and could add unnecessary complexity to financial statements. All other requirements in
ASU 2011-05 remain effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The
Company currently presents comprehensive income in accordance with this standard.
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Testing Goodwill for Impairment. The
ASU includes changes to the accounting guidance for the purpose of simplifying the approach to test goodwill for impairment. The
guidance allows an entity to first assess whether facts or circumstances at an interim date indicate that there is greater than 50%
likelihood that a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value. If the totality of the facts and circumstances, in management’s
judgment, do not result in greater than 50% likelihood, the goodwill impairment testing need not be performed. Likewise, the
guidance also allows for entities to perform the goodwill impairment test at an interim date without considering the qualitative facts
and circumstances that, when taken together, may indicate that a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value. The
amendment is effective for goodwill impairment tests performed for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on the consolidated financial statements.
2. AUCTION RATE SECURITIES
As of January 1, 2011, the Company’s auction rate securities portfolio consisted of the following:
Issuer

Cost Basis

Unrealized
Loss

Fair Value at
January 1,
2011

(In thousands)
Available-for-Sale Securities
Education Funding Capital Education Loan Backed Notes

$

6,250 $

(324) $

(5,926)

On April 27, 2011, the Company sold 100% of its Education Funding Capital Education Loan Backed Notes with a par value of
$6.3 million held with Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. (“Citigroup”). These were the last remaining auction rate securities held by the
Company. The total proceeds from the transaction were $5.9 million. Proceeds from the sale were applied first to the $2.6 million
outstanding balance of the line of credit with Citigroup described below in Note 3, “Line of Credit Agreements.” The Company
received the remaining $3.3 million in proceeds. Upon the disposition of the underlying collateral, the loan agreement with Citigroup
was terminated. As a result of this transaction, $312,000 in losses were reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss in
stockholders’ equity and recognized in Other income, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for
fiscal year 2011. After this reclassification, there was no accumulated other comprehensive gain or loss related to auction rate
securities included in Total Stockholders’ Equity in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss resulting from unrealized losses of available-for-sale securities included in Total Stockholders’
Equity in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet was $324,000 as of January 1, 2011.
For auction rate securities classified as available-for-sale, the Company recognized unrealized holding gains of $12,000 and
$24,000, respectively, during fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010.
During fiscal year 2010, the Company sold its Brazos Student Finance Corporation Student Loan Asset Backed Notes with a par
value of $1.0 million held as part of its auction rate securities portfolio with Citigroup. These auction rate securities were classified as
available-for-sale. The Company received $950,000 in proceeds from the transaction. As a result of this transaction, $50,000 in losses
were reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity and recognized in Other income, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.
Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities classified as available-for-sale are included as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, net of applicable taxes, and have been recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.
During fiscal year 2010, all of the auction rate securities held with an affiliate of UBS AG (“UBS”), with a par value of $5.5
million and classified as trading securities, were sold by the Company. The Company recognized no gains or losses on auction rate
securities classified as trading securities during fiscal year 2011. The Company recognized gains of $56,000 on auction rate securities
classified as trading securities during fiscal year 2010.
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Gains and losses on securities classified as trading securities have been recognized in other income (expense) in the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.
The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the Company’s auction rate securities portfolio for
fiscal years 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):
For the Fiscal
For the Fiscal
Year Ended
Year Ended
December 31,
January 1,
2011
2011
$
5,926 $
12,296
(312)
6

Fair value at beginning of period
Total unrealized and realized gains (losses) included in Other income in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
Total unrealized gains (losses) included in Other comprehensive income (loss) in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
Reclassification of unrealized loss from Other comprehensive income (loss) to realized loss
included in Other income (expense) in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Loss
Sales
$
Fair value at end of period

12
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312

50

(5,938)
- $

(6,450)
5,926

3. LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENTS
In November 2008, the Company entered into a settlement with UBS to provide liquidity for the Company’s auction rate
securities portfolio then held with a UBS affiliate. As provided for in the settlement, the Company entered into a line of credit from
UBS. During the second quarter of fiscal year 2010, the Company liquidated the auction rate securities with a par value of $5.5
million pledged as collateral for the line of credit with UBS. Proceeds from the liquidation were applied first to the $3.7 million
outstanding balance of the line of credit as of the date of the transaction. The Company received the remaining $1.8 million in
proceeds. Upon liquidation of the relevant auction rate securities, the line of credit with UBS was terminated. See Note 2, “Auction
Rate Securities” for further information.
On March 19, 2009, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Citigroup to provide liquidity for the Company's auction
rate securities portfolio held with Citigroup. Under the loan agreement, the Company was provided access to a revolving line of credit
of up to $2.63 million with its auction rate securities pledged as collateral. The line of credit was not for any specific term. During
fiscal year 2011, the Company borrowed $2.63 million under the line of credit which was repaid upon liquidation of the Education
Funding Capital Education Loan Backed Notes on April 27, 2011. The line of credit was terminated upon disposition of the
underlying auction rate securities. No amounts were borrowed against the line during fiscal year 2010. The borrowings against the
line of credit were used to fund short-term liquidity needs. See Note 2, “Auction Rate Securities” for further information.
4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Balance as of January 1, 2011
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rates

$

North
America
3,947

Balance as of December 31, 2011

$

3,947

$

EMEA
4,046
2

$

Total
7,993
2

$

4,048

$

7,995

The Company had gross goodwill and accumulated goodwill impairment losses as of the beginning and end of fiscal years 2011
and 2010 as follows:
As of

As of

As of

Gross balance of goodwill (including foreign currency adjustments)
Accumulated goodwill impairment losses (including foreign currency
adjustments)
Net balance of goodwill

December 31,
January 1,
January 2,
2011
2011
2010
$
67,552 $
67,549 $
67,641
(59,557)
(59,556)
(59,869)
$

7,995

$

7,993

$

7,772

Licenses and identifiable intangible assets, net are comprised of the following (in thousands):

Customer relationships

January 1, 2011
Accumulated
Cost
Amortization
$
5,261 $
(4,765

Intangible amortization expense for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 was $496,000 and
$1,973,000, respectively, including $581,000 reported in cost of services for fiscal year 2010 for acquired software technology that
was fully amortized as of January 1, 2011. At December 31, 2011, all intangible assets were fully amortized.
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The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on an annual basis on the last day of the first fiscal month of the fourth quarter
and whenever events or circumstances indicate that these assets may be impaired. The Company performs its impairment testing for
goodwill in accordance with FASB ASC 350 "Intangibles-Goodwill and Other." Based on the results of the annual step one
impairment test, management concluded that there was no impairment of goodwill during fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010. In
addition, due to the loss of key leadership personnel and results of operations in the EMEA reporting unit during the thirteen weeks
ended October 1, 2011, management performed step one of the goodwill impairment evaluation as of October 1, 2011. Based on the
results of the interim step one impairment test, management concluded that the EMEA reporting unit’s carrying amount did not exceed
its fair value as of October 1, 2011 and therefore the reporting unit’s goodwill was deemed not impaired.
The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets might not be recoverable in accordance with the
provisions of FASB ASC 360, "Property, Plant and Equipment" and FASB ASC 350, "Intangibles-Goodwill and Other." Based on an
analysis of future cash flows, management determined that there was no impairment of long-lived or intangible assets during fiscal
year 2011 and fiscal year 2010.
5. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
The Company estimates the fair value of its stock options and stock issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan using the
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. Groups of employees or non-employee directors that have similar historical and expected
exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. Assumptions used in estimating the fair value of stock options
granted include risk-free interest rate, expected life, expected volatility factor, and expected dividend rate. The risk-free interest rate is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield at the time of grant for a term equal to the expected life of the stock option; the expected life is
determined using the simplified method of estimating the life as allowed under SAB No. 110; and the expected volatility is based on
the historical volatility of the Company's stock price for a period of time equal to the expected life of the stock option. There were no
stock options granted during fiscal years 2011 and 2010.
Nearly all of the Company's share-based compensation arrangements utilize graded vesting schedules where a portion of the
grant vests annually over a period of two to four years. The Company has a policy of recognizing compensation expense for awards
with graded vesting over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-substance,
multiple awards. This policy has the effect of accelerating the recognition of expense when compared to a straight-line amortization
methodology.
On May 27, 2010, the stockholders of the Company approved amendments to the Company's Amended and Restated 1998
Equity Incentive Plan (the "1998 Plan"). The amendments to the 1998 Plan include the following: (1) an increase of 614,338 in the
number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 1998 Plan to correct a miscalculation in the 2009 amendments to
the 1998 Plan; and (2) a reallocation of 291,321 shares of common stock not subject to outstanding awards under the Company's 2000
Supplemental Stock Plan (the "Supplemental Stock Plan") from the Supplemental Stock Plan to the 1998 Plan.
As of December 31, 2011, the Company has two share-based compensation plans under which awards are outstanding, which are
described below. The compensation cost that has been charged against operations for those plans under FASB ASC 718,
"Compensation – Stock Compensation" was $0.1 million and $0.3 million during fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010, respectively.
The Company recognized no income tax benefit for share-based compensation arrangements for fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010.
In addition, no compensation costs related to these arrangements were capitalized in either year. As of December 31, 2011, there is no
remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested portion of all share-based compensation arrangements. The
Company has historically issued and expects to continue to issue new shares to satisfy stock option exercises, vesting of nonvested
stock or purchases of shares under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
1998 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
The Company's 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, is a stockholder approved plan, which provides for the
granting of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to employees, and nonqualified stock options, nonvested stock, and
restricted stock units to employees, directors and consultants. The 1998 Plan is scheduled to expire in June 2019. As of December 31,
2011, the Company has 1,688,696 shares of the Company's common stock available for issuance upon exercise of outstanding options
or for future awards under the 1998 Plan.
Stock Options

Incentive stock options are granted at an exercise price of not less than market value per share of the common stock on the date
of grant as determined by the Board of Directors. Vesting and exercise provisions are determined by the Board of Directors.
As of December 31, 2011, all options granted under the 1998 Plan were non-qualified stock options. Options granted under the
1998 Plan generally become exercisable over a three to four year period beginning on the date of grant. Options granted under the
1998 Plan have a maximum term of ten years.
A summary of the option activity of the Company's 1998 Plan as of December 31, 2011 and changes during the fiscal year then
ended is presented below:

Outstanding at January 1, 2011
Forfeited/cancelled

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Shares
Price
641,093 $
11.18
(125,601) $
12.79

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2011

515,492

$

10.79

3.5 years

$

300

Options vested and expected to be vested at
December 31, 2011

513,685

$

10.81

3.5 years

$

300

Options exercisable at December 31, 2011

510,442

$

10.87

3.5 years

$

200
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There were no options granted during fiscal year 2011 or fiscal year 2010. As of December 31, 2011 there is no remaining
unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to the unvested portion of stock options issued under the 1998
Plan.
Nonvested Stock
Shares of nonvested stock under the 1998 Plan are subject to restriction based upon a two to four year vesting schedule. The fair
value of nonvested share awards is determined based on the closing trading price of the Company's common stock on the award date.
A summary of the status of nonvested stock issued under the 1998 Plan as of December 31, 2011 and changes during the fiscal
year then ended is presented below:
Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Shares
Fair Value
375 $
11.25
(375) $
11.25
- $
-

Outstanding at January 1, 2011
Vested
Outstanding at December 31, 2011

There were no shares of nonvested stock issued during fiscal year 2011 or fiscal year 2010. As of December 31, 2011, there was
no material unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock granted under the 1998 Plan. The total fair value of shares
vested was $900 and $2,000 during fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2010, respectively.
2000 SUPPLEMENTAL STOCK PLAN
The Supplemental Stock Plan expired May 23, 2010. The outstanding awards issued pursuant to the Supplemental Stock Plan
will remain subject to the terms of the Supplemental Stock Plan following expiration of the plan. The Supplemental Stock Plan
provided the Company's common stock for the granting of nonqualified stock options to employees and was not subject to stockholder
approval. Vesting and exercise provisions were determined by the Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan generally
become exercisable over a period of up to four years beginning on the date of grant and have a maximum term of ten years.
A summary of the option activity of the Company's Supplemental Stock Plan as of December 31, 2011 and changes during the
fiscal year then ended is presented below:

Outstanding at January 1, 2011
Exercised
Forfeited/cancelled

Shares
247,437 $
(500) $
(92,237) $

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
11.74
1.20
12.32

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2011

154,700

$

11.43

4.9 years

$

0

Options vested and expected to be vested at
December 31, 2011

152,360

$

11.49

4.8 years

$

0

Options exercisable at December 31, 2011

148,850

$

11.58

4.8 years

$

0

There were no options granted during fiscal year 2011 or fiscal year 2010. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $500
in fiscal year 2011. There were no options exercised during fiscal year 2010. As of December 31, 2011 there is no remaining

unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to the unvested portion of stock options issued under the
Supplemental Stock Plan.
EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
Under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), shares of the Company's common stock may be purchased at six-month
intervals at 85% of the lower of the fair market value on the first day of the enrollment period or on the last day of each six-month
period over the subsequent two years. Employees may purchase shares through a payroll deduction program having a value not
exceeding 15% of their gross compensation during an offering period. During 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized net expense of
$13,000 and $15,000, respectively, in connection with FASB ASC 718 associated with the ESPP.
6. BUSINESS SEGMENTS, MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SIGNIFICANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
The Company identifies its segments based on the way management organizes the Company to assess performance and make
operating decisions regarding the allocation of resources. In accordance with the criteria in FASB ASC 280 "Segment Reporting," the
Company has concluded it has two reportable segments: the North America segment and the EMEA segment. The North America
segment is comprised of three operating segments (Strategy, North America Cable and Broadband, North America Telecom), which
are aggregated into one reportable segment based on the similarity of their economic characteristics. The EMEA segment is a single
reportable, operating segment that encompasses the Company's operational, technology and software consulting operations outside of
North America. Both reportable segments offer management consulting, custom developed software, and technical services.
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Management evaluates segment performance based upon income (loss) from operations, excluding share-based compensation
(benefits), depreciation and intangibles amortization. Inter-segment revenues during fiscal year 2011 were approximately $753,000.
There were no inter-segment sales in fiscal year 2010. In addition, in its administrative division, entitled "Not Allocated to Segments,"
the Company accounts for non-operating activity and the costs of providing corporate and other administrative services to the
segments. Summarized financial information concerning the Company's reportable segments is shown in the following table (in
thousands):
North

EMEA

Not Allocated

America
As of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011:
Revenues
Income (loss) from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Income (loss) before income tax provision
Depreciation and amortization
Total assets
As of and for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011:
Revenues
Income (loss) from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Income (loss) before income tax provision
Depreciation and amortization
Total assets

$

to Segments

47,828
12,479

$

12,479

15,260
1,795

$

1,795

$

7,895

$

3,533

$

$

51,220
12,185

$

16,023
3,043

$

12,185
$

Total

3,043

11,124

$

5,406

$

$
(18,505)
63
(15)
(18,769)
1,358
23,859 $

63,088
(4,231)
63
(15)
(4,495)
1,358
35,287

$
(18,334)
193
(16)
(18,131)
2,769
24,565 $

67,243
(3,106)
193
(16)
(2,903)
2,769
41,095

Segment assets, regularly reviewed by management as part of its overall assessment of the segments' performance, include both
billed and unbilled trade accounts receivable, net of allowances, and certain other assets, if applicable. Assets not assigned to segments
include cash and cash equivalents, current and non-current investments, property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets and
deferred tax assets, excluding deferred tax assets recognized on accounts receivable reserves, which are assigned to their segments.
In accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 280-10, revenues earned in the United States and internationally based on the
location where the services are performed are shown in the following table (amounts in thousands):
Revenues

Fiscal Year

United States
International:
United Kingdom
Other
Total

$

2011
45,876

$

15,351
1,861
63,088

Loss Before Income Tax
Provision
Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

$

2010
49,902

$

16,348
993
67,243

$

2011
(3,268) $

2010
(2,154)

$

(1,094)
(133)
(4,495) $

(706)
(43)
(2,903)

Major customers in terms of significance to TMNG's revenues (i.e. in excess of 10% of revenues) for fiscal years 2011 and 2010
and accounts receivable as of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Customer A

Revenues
Fiscal Year 2011
Fiscal Year 2010
North
EMEA
North
EMEA
America
America
$
3,800
$
6,840

Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E

$
$
$
$

17,289
9,626
5,876
5,776

$

236

$
$
$
$

17,304
9,953
6,502
6,946

$

754

Accounts Receivable
December 31,
January 1,
2011
Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E

$
$
$
$
$

2011
924
2,916
1,271
773
731

$
$
$
$
$

2,429
2,948
1,832
694
4,241

Revenues from the Company's ten most significant customers accounted for approximately 84% of revenues in both fiscal years
2011 and 2010.
Substantially all of TMNG's receivables are obligations of companies in the communications, media and entertainment
industries. The Company generally does not require collateral or other security on its accounts receivable. The credit risk on these
accounts is controlled through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. The Company records bad debt expense based on
judgment about the anticipated default rate on receivables owed to TMNG at the end of the reporting period. That judgment is based
on the Company's uncollected account experience in prior years and the ongoing evaluation of the credit status of TMNG's customers
and the communications industry in general.

29

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
December 31,

Furniture and fixtures
Software and computer equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
$

January 1,

2011
2011
(In thousands)
1,611 $
1,550
4,494
4,156
1,393
1,270
7,498
6,976
5,845
4,993
1,653 $
1,983

Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment was $862,000 and $796,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
8. INCOME TAXES
For fiscal years 2011 and 2010, the income tax benefit (provision) consists of the following (amounts in thousands):

Federal
Deferred tax (expense) benefit, net
State
Current tax (expense) benefit
Deferred tax (expense) benefit, net

Fiscal

Fiscal

Year

Year

2011

2010

$

(104) $

Foreign
Current tax (expense) benefit
Total

$

(111)

(16)
(16)

35
(17)
18

199

803

79 $

710

The Company has reserved all of its domestic and foreign net deferred tax assets with a valuation allowance as of December 31,
2011 and January 1, 2011, in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 740 "Income Taxes." Realization of the deferred tax asset
is dependent on generating sufficient income in future periods. In evaluating the ability to use its deferred tax assets, the Company
considers all positive and negative evidence including the Company's past operating results, the existence of cumulative losses in the
most recent fiscal year and the Company's forecast of future income. In determining future income, the Company is responsible for
assumptions utilized including the amount of state, federal and international operating income, the reversal of temporary differences
and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment about the
forecasts of future income and are consistent with the plans and estimates the Company is using to manage the underlying business.
The following is a reconciliation between the provision for income taxes and the amounts computed based on loss before income
taxes at the statutory federal income tax rate (amounts in thousands):

Computed expected federal income tax benefit
State income tax (expense) benefit, net of federal
benefit
Rate differential on foreign operations

$

Fiscal Year 2011
Amount
%
1,573
54
(293)

35.0
1.2
(6.5)

$

Fiscal Year 2010
Amount
%
1,016
(10)
(263)

35.0
(0.3)
(9.1)

Reversal of reserve for uncertain income tax
positions, net of interest
Forfeited vested stock options
Adjustment to estimated tax loss carryforward
Change in statutory tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Other
Change in valuation allowance
Total

199

$

(581)
(106)
(205)
(97)
(17)
(448)
79

30

4.5
(12.9)
(2.4)
(4.6)
(2.1)
(0.4)
(10.0)
1.8 $

753

26.0

(168)
(76)
(75)
(115)
27
(379)
710

(5.8)
(2.6)
(2.6)
(4.0)
1.0
(13.1)
24.5

The significant components of deferred income tax assets and the related balance sheet classifications, as of December 31, 2011
and January 1, 2011, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Unfavorable liabilities
Other
Valuation allowance
Current deferred tax asset

$

$

Non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Goodwill and intangible assets
Share-based compensation expense
Net operating loss carryforward
Auction rate securities
Other
Foreign tax credit carryforward
Valuation allowance

$

December 31,

January 1,

2011

2011
$
108
(108)
0 $

8,667
1,381
22,025

$

10,347
2,031
19,417
85
384
1,067
(33,577)

(366) $

(246)

504
1,006
(33,949)

Non-current deferred tax liabilities

$

25
130
(155)
0

The federal net operating loss carryforward as of December 31, 2011 is scheduled to expire as follows (amounts in thousands):

Total

Amount
$ 1,640
5,602
9,094
7,432
9,854
5,152
1,637
3,279
4,664
$ 48,354

Year
2015
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2030
2031

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has a deferred tax asset of $2.9 million related to state net operating loss carryforwards.
In addition, the Company has a deferred tax asset of $2.1 million related to foreign net operating loss carryforwards as of
December 31, 2011 that have no expiration date. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has net of foreign tax credits of
$1.0 million. If unutilized, the expiration of these foreign tax credits is $317,000 and $689,000 in fiscal years 2018 and 2019,
respectively. The Company has not provided tax on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, because it is the Company's
intention to reinvest these earnings indefinitely.
The determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liabilities related to investments in foreign subsidiaries that is
essentially permanent in nature is not practicable.
The Company analyzes its uncertain tax positions pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC 740 "Income Taxes." ASC 740
prescribes a two-step process to determine the amount of tax benefit to be recognized. First, the tax position must be evaluated to
determine the likelihood that it will be sustained upon external examination. If the tax position is deemed "more-likely-than-not" to be
sustained, the tax position is then assessed to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The amount of
the benefit that may be recognized is the largest amount that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with the taxing authority. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should
be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that

no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting
period in which that threshold is no longer met.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits (excluding
penalties and interest) is as follows:
December 31,
2011

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year
Gross decreases in tax positions taken in prior periods

$

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year

$

January 1,

2011
(In thousands)
108 $
730
(108)
(622)
-

$

108

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no remaining unrecognized tax benefits (including penalties and interest). As of
January 1, 2011, the Company reported total unrecognized tax benefits (including penalties and interest) of $199,000. When these
amounts are recognized, the entire amount impacts the effective tax rate. During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, the Company decreased
the reserves related to uncertain income tax positions by $108,000 and $622,000, respectively, due to the expiration of statutes of
limitations of tax filings in foreign jurisdictions.
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The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the income tax
provision. As of December 31, 2011, there were no accrued income tax-related interest and penalties included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. As of January 1, 2011, the total amount of accrued income tax-related interest and penalties included in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet was $91,000.
The Company or one of its subsidiaries files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign
jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non-U.S. income tax
examinations by tax authorities for years before 2004. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has no income tax examinations in
process.
9. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Company leases office facilities, computer equipment, office furniture, and an automobile under various operating leases
expiring at various dates through July 2019.
Following is a summary of future minimum payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancellable lease
terms at December 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands):
Operating

Fiscal Year

Leases
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments
Future minimum rentals to be received under non-cancellable subleases
Minimum lease payments net of amounts to be received under subleases

$

$

1,363
1,462
1,271
1,217
303
434
6,050
(86)
5,964

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had unamortized balances of current unfavorable lease liabilities in the amount of $61,000.
As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no remaining unamortized balances of unfavorable lease liabilities.
Total rental expense, net of subtenant rents received, was approximately $1,395,000 and $1,776,000 for fiscal years 2011 and
2010, respectively, and was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company recorded $136,000 and $482,000,
respectively, in rental income from subtenants during fiscal years 2011 and 2010. Rents received from subtenants are recorded as an
offset to rental expense.
10. LOAN TO OFFICER
As of January 1, 2011, there was one outstanding line of credit between the Company and its former Chief Executive Officer,
Richard P. Nespola, which originated in fiscal year 2001. Aggregate borrowings outstanding against the line of credit at January 1,
2011 were $300,000. During fiscal year 2011, the outstanding principal amount and accrued interest were paid in full to the Company
by Mr. Nespola.
The outstanding principal was included in Prepaids and Other Current Assets in the current assets section of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of January 1, 2011. The interest rate charged for each advance under the loan was based upon the Applicable Federal
Rate (AFR), as announced by the Internal Revenue Service, for short-term obligations (with annual compounding) in effect for the
month in which the advance was made. Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, no further personal loans may be made by the Company
to, or arranged by the Company for its executive officers.
11. LETTERS OF CREDIT
In March 2002, the Company entered into a standby letter of credit ("LOC") facility with a financial institution in connection
with an acquisition. The LOC was required as part of the assignment of the leased office space from the seller to the Company. As of

January 1, 2011, the required collateral amount was $273,000. The collateral deposited for this LOC was included in "Cash and Cash
Equivalents" on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January 1, 2011. The Company would be required to perform under
the agreement in the event it was to default on balances due and owing the landlord on the leased office space. An obligation was not
recorded in connection with the LOC on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January 1, 2011. During first quarter 2011,
as a result of the completion of the lease on the relevant office space, the collateral on the standby letter of credit in the amount of
$273,000 was returned to the Company.
In connection with the leasing of office space, the Company provides security deposits in the form of two irrevocable letters of
credit with financial institutions for the benefit of the respective landlords. As of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, the
required, total collateral amount was $141,000 and $157,000, respectively. The collateral deposited for these letters of credit is
included in "Other Assets" on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011. No
obligation has been recorded in connection with the letters of credit on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011.
12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
See Note 10, "Loan to Officer," for information regarding related party transactions.
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
On January 10, 2012, Richard P. Nespola, the Company’s former chief executive officer and former chairman of the board and a
current member of the Company’s Board of Directors, filed an action, Richard P. Nespola v. The Management Network Group, Inc.,
against the Company with the American Arbitration Association. In this action, Mr. Nespola claims that the Company breached his
employment agreement and an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing by: (i) improperly deciding not to renew his
employment agreement, and (ii) subsequently deciding to terminate his employment for cause. Further, Mr. Nespola claims the
Company defamed him by publishing to the Board of Directors of the Company allegedly false reasons for terminating his
employment for cause. Mr. Nespola seeks in excess of $1.6 million in damages plus attorneys’ fees and costs. TMNG denies Mr.
Nespola’s allegations, does not believe the action has any merit and intends to defend against it vigorously. This proceeding is at a
preliminary stage and the Company is unable to reasonably estimate any possible loss or range of possible loss given the current status
of the arbitration and given the inherent uncertainty in predicting any future judicial or arbitration decision or other resolution of the
proceeding. The arbitration is currently stayed pending resolution of Richard P. Nespola v. The Management Network Group, Inc.,
and American Arbitration Association, a New York state court action filed by Mr. Nespola alleging that the American Arbitration
Association improperly transferred the arbitration proceedings from New York to Overland Park, Kansas and requesting that the New
York state court overturn the transfer and assign a New York arbitrator. The Company is currently opposing this action as well, as it
believes the American Arbitration Association decision was valid.
In addition, the Company may become involved in various legal and administrative actions arising in the normal course of
business. These could include actions brought by taxing authorities challenging the employment status of consultants utilized by the
Company. In addition, future customer bankruptcies could result in additional claims on collected balances for professional services
near the bankruptcy filing date. The resolution of any of such actions, claims, or the matters described above may have an impact on
the financial results for the period in which they occur.
During fiscal year 2009, the Company entered into an agreement under which it has a commitment to purchase a minimum of
$401,000 in computer software over a three year period. As of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively, the Company
had obligations of $21,000 and $156,000 remaining under this commitment.
During fiscal year 2010, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase telecommunications equipment in the amount of
$99,000. As of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively, the Company had obligations of $64,000 and $99,000
remaining under this commitment.
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
The Company offers defined contribution plans to eligible employees. Such employees may contribute a percentage of their
annual compensation in accordance with the plans guidelines. The plans provide for Company contributions that are subject to
maximum limitations as defined by the plans. Company contributions to its defined contribution plans totaled $1,090,000 and
$760,000 in the years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011, respectively.
15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In January 2012, the Company made certain changes to its executive management team. Effective January 8, 2012, Richard P.
Nespola was terminated as the Company’s Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Nespola remains a member of
the Company’s Board of Directors. Donald E. Klumb became the Company’s Chief Executive Officer effective January 8, 2012 and
the Company’s President effective January 13, 2012. Mr. Klumb continues to serve as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer.
Effective January 13, 2012, Micky K. Woo was appointed to the position of Executive Chairman and relinquished the positions of
President and Chief Operating Officer. Also effective January 13, 2012, independent director Roy Wilkens was named Presiding
Director of the Non-Management Directors of the Company. See Note 13, "Commitments and Contingencies," for information
regarding an arbitration proceeding and related court proceeding brought by Mr. Nespola against the Company relating to the
termination of his employment.
Effective January 25, 2012, the Board increased the number of directors on the Board by one to a total of seven and appointed
Peter H. Woodward as a new Class II member of the Board, to fill the newly created directorship and to serve until the next election of
Class II directors at the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor is duly elected and qualified or until his earlier
resignation or removal. The Board also appointed Mr. Woodward to serve as a member of the Board’s Compensation Committee on
January 25, 2012 and Audit Committee on February 12, 2012.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules
and forms; and (ii) accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its principal executive and financial
officer to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We have established a Disclosure Committee, consisting of certain
members of management, to assist in this evaluation. The Disclosure Committee meets regularly on a quarterly basis, and as needed.
A review and evaluation was performed by our management, including the person serving as our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer (the "CEO and CFO"), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based upon this evaluation, the Company's CEO and CFO has concluded that the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2011.
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting for the Company. With the participation of our CEO and CFO, our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework and criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our
management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control over financial reporting was not subject to attestation by the
Company's independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to applicable statutes and SEC rules that require the Company to
provide only management's report in this annual report.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2011 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Proxy Statement") contains, under
the captions "Election of Directors," "Executive Officers" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" the
information required by Item 10 of this Form 10-K, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The Proxy Statement contains under the captions "Election of Directors," "Election of Directors — Non-Employee Director
Compensation," "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation," the information required by Item 11 of this Form 10-K,
which information is incorporated herein by this reference.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The Proxy Statement contains under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" certain
of the information required by Item 12 of this Form 10-K, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

(a)
Number of
Securities to be Issued
Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
PLANS APPROVED BY SECURITY HOLDERS(1)
— 1998 Equity Incentive Plan
PLANS NOT APPROVED BY SECURITY HOLDERS
— 2000 Supplemental Stock Plan

(b)
Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

(c)
Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance
Under Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))(1)

515,492

$

10.79

1,173,204

154,700

$

11.43

—

(1) The amounts in the table do not include up to 26,589 shares that may be purchased under the 1999 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan.
For an additional discussion of our equity compensation plans, see Item 8, "Consolidated Financial Statements," Note 5, "ShareBased Compensation."
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND, RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The Proxy Statement contains under the captions "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and "Election of Directors"
the information required by Item 13 of this Form 10-K, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The Proxy Statement contains under the caption "Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm" the information required by Item 14 of this Form 10-K, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed or furnished as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
(1) The response to this portion of Item 15 is set forth in Item 8 of Part II hereof.
(2) Schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.
(3) Exhibits. See accompanying Index to Exhibits. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Company has filed, furnished or incorporated by reference the documents referenced in the accompanying Index to
Exhibits as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The documents include agreements to which the Company is a party or has a
beneficial interest. The agreements have been filed to provide investors with information regarding their respective terms. The
agreements are not intended to provide any other factual information about the Company or its business or operations. In particular,
the assertions embodied in any representations, warranties and covenants contained in the agreements may be subject to qualifications
with respect to knowledge and materiality different from those applicable to investors and may be qualified by information in
confidential disclosure schedules not included with the exhibits. These disclosure schedules may contain information that modifies,
qualifies and creates exceptions to the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in the agreements. Moreover, certain
representations, warranties and covenants in the agreements may have been used for the purpose of allocating risk between the parties,
rather than establishing matters as facts. In addition, information concerning the subject matter of the representations, warranties and
covenants may have changed after the date of the respective agreement, which subsequent information may or may not be fully
reflected in the Company's public disclosures. Accordingly, investors should not rely on the representations, warranties and covenants
in the agreements as characterizations of the actual state of facts about the Company or its business or operations on the date hereof.
The Company will furnish to any stockholder, upon written request, any exhibit listed in the accompanying Index to Exhibits upon
payment by such stockholder of the Company's reasonable expenses in furnishing any such exhibit.
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
By:

/s/ DONALD E. KLUMB
DONALD E. KLUMB
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, PRESIDENT, AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Date: March 30, 2012
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and
appoints Donald E. Klumb as his attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any
and all amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they may be signed by
our said attorney to any and all amendments to said Report.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated:
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ DONALD E. KLUMB
Donald E. Klumb

Chief Executive Officer (Principal executive officer),
President, and Chief Financial Officer (Principal accounting
officer)

March 30, 2012

/s/ MICKY K. WOO
Micky K. Woo

Director

March 30, 2012

/s/ RICHARD P. NESPOLA
Richard P. Nespola

Director

March 30, 2012

/s/ ANDREW LIPMAN
Andrew Lipman

Director

March 30, 2012

/s/ ROBERT J. CURREY
Robert J. Currey

Director

March 30, 2012

/s/ ROY A. WILKENS
Roy A. Wilkens

Director

March 30, 2012

/s/ A. REZA JAFARI
A. Reza Jafari

Director

March 30, 2012

/s/ PETER H. WOODWARD
Peter H. Woodward

Director

March 30, 2012
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this report.
Exhibit
Number
Description of Document
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 5, 2010, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3.1.
3.2 Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, as filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on July 19, 2010 filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 19, 2010 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, is hereby incorporated by reference as
Exhibit 3.2.
3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws, filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 26, 2012, are incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3.3.
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 originally filed
September 20, 1999 (Registration No. 333-87383), as amended (the "1999 S-1 Registration Statement"), is incorporated
herein by reference as Exhibit 4.1.
4.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated February 12, 1998, among the Company and certain holders of the Company's
common stock (the "Registration Rights Agreement"), filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the 1999 S-1 Registration Statement, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.2.
4.3 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2010, by and between the Company and Computershare
Trust Company N.A., filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 19, 2010 filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.3.
4.4 Form of Rights Certificate, filed as Exhibit B to the Amended and Restated Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 19, 2010, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 4.4.
10.1 Registration Rights Agreement. (See Exhibit 4.2).
10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each of its Directors and Officers, filed as Exhibit 10.2
to the 1999 S-1 Registration Statement, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.2.(1)
10.3 Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on June 8, 2009, filed as Appendix A to
the definitive proxy statement of the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 21, 2010,
and the Form of Agreements thereunder, filed in Exhibit 10.3 to the 1999 S-1 Registration Statement, are incorporated
herein by reference as Exhibit 10.3.(1)
10.4 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan filed as Appendix A to the definitive proxy statement of the Company filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 4, 2009, and the Form of Agreements thereunder, filed in
Exhibit 10.4 to the 1999 S-1 Registration Statement, are incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.4.(1)
10.5 2000 Supplemental Stock Plan and Form of Agreements thereunder, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company's Form 10K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.5.(1)
10.6 Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard Nespola, dated January 5, 2004, filed as Exhibit 10.19 to
the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference as
Exhibit 10.6.(1)
10.7 Sublease between Best Doctors, Inc. and Cambridge Strategic Management Group Inc. (formerly TMNG Strategy,
Inc.), dated December 30, 2004, filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 1,
2005, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.7.
10.8 Third Amended Lease Agreement between NewTower Trust Company Multi-Employer Property Trust and the
Company, dated August 30, 2005, filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 30, 2006, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.8.
10 .9 Third Additional Space Commencement Date Agreement between NewTower Trust Company Multi-Employer
Property Trust and the Company, dated February 28, 2006, filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 30, 2006, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.9.
10.10 Lease Agreement between Cartesian Limited and Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada (U.K.) Limited, dated
November 23, 2000, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.10.
10.11 Fourth Amendment to Lease between NewTower Trust Company Multi-Employer Property Trust and the Company,
dated July 10, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2007,
is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.11.

10.12 Fifth Amendment to Lease between NewTower Trust Company Multi-Employer Property Trust and the Company,
dated May 19, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28, 2008, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.12.
10.13 The Management Network Group, Inc. 2010 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6, 2010, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.13.(1)
10.14 The Management Network Group, Inc. 2011 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2011, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.14.(1)
10.15 Lease between Two Financial Center, LLC and the Company, dated August 16, 2010, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 2, 2010, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.15.
10.16 Deed of Variation of the lease between EPO (Norman) Limited, EPO (Norman 2) Limited and the Company, dated
September 30, 2010, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 2, 2010, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.16.
10.17 The Management Network Group, Inc. 2012 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 28, 2012, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.17.(1)
10.18 Employment Agreement between Cambridge Strategic Management Group, Inc. and Susan Simmons dated October 20,
2006, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, is
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.18.(1)
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.19 Settlement Agreement dated January 25, 2012, by and among the Company, Norman H. Pessin, Sandra F. Pessin,
MHW Partners, L.P., MHW Capital, LLC, MHW Capital Management, LLC and Peter H. Woodward, filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 26, 2012, is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 10.19.
10.20 Employment Agreement between The Management Network Group, Inc. and Donald E. Klumb dated February 3,
2012, attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.20.(1)
10.21 Employment Agreement between The Management Network Group, Inc. and Micky K. Woo dated January 25, 2012,
attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.21.(1)
21.1 List of subsidiaries of the Company, prepared pursuant to Item 601(b)(21) of Regulation S-K, is attached to this
Form 10-K as Exhibit 21.1.
23.1 Consent of independent registered public accounting firm is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 23.1.
24.1 Power of attorney (see signature page).
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 31.1.
32.1 Certification furnished pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached to this Form 10-K as
Exhibit 32.1.
(1)

Management contracts and compensatory plans and arrangements required to be filed as Exhibits pursuant to
Item 15 of this report.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of February 3, 2012, is entered into by and between
THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), with offices at 7300 College
Boulevard – Suite 302, Overland Park, Kansas 66210, and DONALD E. KLUMB, an individual (“Employee”), residing at 12617
Juniper Circle, Leawood, Kansas 66209.
RECITALS
The Company wishes to obtain the services of Employee and Employee wishes to perform such services on the terms and
conditions contained herein.
Therefore, the parties hereby agree as follows:
1.
EMPLOYMENT. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, effective as of January 8, 2012 (the
“Effective Date”), the Company hereby continues to employ Employee as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company to perform the duties described in Section 4 hereof.
2.
TERM. The term of this Agreement shall be two years from the date first noted above, unless such term is
terminated earlier pursuant to Section 7 hereof (the “Initial Term”). The Agreement shall automatically renew for successive one-year
renewal terms unless either party gives the other party at least sixty (60) days advance notice of their intent not to renew. Such Initial
Term and any such renewal terms may be collectively referred to as the “Term”.
3.

COMPENSATION.

3.1
Salary. Subject to the adjustment provisions herein, Employee shall be paid biweekly installments based
upon an annual base salary of $350,000, however, on or about July 1, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”)
will evaluate and determine whether to increase such annual base salary to $400,000. The Company may adjust Employee’s
base salary at any time in its sole discretion to reflect Employee’s performance; provided, however, that Employee’s base
salary shall at no time be less than the minimum base salary set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph. Amounts paid
pursuant to this Section 3.1 are hereinafter referred to as “Base Salary.”
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3.2
Bonus. In addition to Employee’s Base Salary, Employee shall be (a) entitled to receive an incentive
bonus in an amount determined by the Board provided that Employee achieves the reasonable performance goals and
objectives established by the Board for Employee for 2012; and (b) eligible to participate in the Company’s bonus pool for
the Company’s executive officers established pursuant to the executive incentive compensation plan, as duly approved by the
Compensation Committee of the Board. For the 2012 fiscal year, the Board shall establish for the year the amount of the
bonus pool and the reasonable performance goals to be achieved as a condition to the Company’s eligible executives being
entitled to the bonus pool pursuant to the executive incentive compensation plan. The annual performance goals related to the
bonus pool shall be based upon the Company’s overall performance. The Board and Employee shall agree upon those
executive employees of the Company, in addition to Employee, who are eligible to participate in the executive incentive
compensation plan. Employee shall determine the allocation of the bonus pool among eligible participants, subject to
approval of the Board. The individual incentive bonus for Employee and Employee’s allocable portion of the bonus pool as
described herein are referred to as the “Bonus.” In order to be eligible to receive a Bonus, Employee must be employed by
the Company on the last day of the applicable fiscal year for which the performance goals are established. The Bonus, if any,
shall be paid within two and one-half months after the end of the applicable fiscal year.
3.3
Other Compensation. The Compensation Committee of the Board shall periodically (and in any event,
annually) review Employee’s compensation and recommend to the Board of Directors for its consideration such
modifications, if any, to such compensation as the committee determines may be appropriate for the Chief Executive Officer,
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. In connection with such process, the Compensation Committee may
recommend that the Board consider extraordinary bonuses and other forms of compensation for Employee.
3.4
Equity Awards. Upon dissolution of the special committee of the Board and at such time as permissible in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the Board will evaluate
and determine whether to grant to Employee non-qualified stock options and/or shares of restricted stock in the Company or
such other equity awards as the Board determines.
4.
DUTIES. Employee shall, during the term hereof, be an officer of the Company and have the title of Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and shall perform such duties as and have such authority as
are customary and usual for such position and as may reasonably be directed by the Board of the Company. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing:
4.1
Full Time. Employee shall devote Employee’s full working time, ability and attention to the business of
the Company and shall, in accordance with the highest ethical and professional standards, seek to maximize the financial
success of the Company’s business and to optimize the goodwill and reputation of the Company within its industry and with
its customers. During the term of this Agreement, Employee agrees that he will not become involved in the active ownership
or management of any business enterprise that will interfere with the performance of his duties hereunder. Employee further
warrants that he will not engage, directly or indirectly, in any other business activity (whether or not pursued for pecuniary
advantage) that is or may be in conflict with, or that might place him in a conflicting position to, that of the Company. So that
the Company may be aware of the extent of any other demands upon Employee’s time and attention, Employee shall disclose
in confidence to the Company the nature and scope of any other business activity in which he is or becomes engaged during
his employment with the Company. Employee also warrants that he is not a party to any valid or binding agreement or legal
relationship whose performance or execution would interfere with the performance of his duties under this Agreement.
Employee may serve as a director of other corporations or entities with the prior approval of the Board, which approval will
not be unreasonably withheld.
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4.2
Reporting. Employee shall report to the Executive Chairman of the Board of the Company, or at such time
as there is no longer an Executive Chairman of the Board, to the Board.
5.
EXPENSES. Subject to such rules and procedures as the Company from time to time specifies, the Company shall
reimburse Employee on a bi-weekly basis for reasonable business expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of duties under
this Agreement.
6.
as set forth below.

BENEFITS. Except as otherwise set forth herein, Employee shall be entitled to fringe benefits and paid time off

6.1
Participation in Employee Benefit Plans. Employee shall be eligible to participate in any health, disability,
and group term life insurance plans or other perquisites and fringe benefits that the Company extends generally from time to
time to the executive officers of the Company. These benefits described in this Section 6.1 are collectively referred to herein
as “Fringe Benefits”.
6.2
Paid Time Off. Employee shall be eligible for Personal Time Off in accordance with the Company’s
Personal Time Off policy then in effect and applicable to executive officers of the Company.
7.

TERMINATION.

7.1
Termination By The Company Due to Death or Disability. In the event of Employee’s death during the
Term, this Agreement and the employment of Employee hereunder shall terminate automatically as of the date of death,
except that Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 shall survive such termination. In the event of Employee’s Disability (as hereinafter
defined) for ninety (90) consecutive calendar days or one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days in the aggregate during
any twelve (12) months of the Term, the Company shall have the right, by written notice to Employee, to terminate this
Agreement and the employment of Employee hereunder as of the date of such notice, except that Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, and
13 shall survive such termination. “Disability” for the purposes of this Agreement shall (A) be determined by an independent
physician selected by the Company and (B) mean Employee’s physical or mental disability so as to render Employee
substantially incapable, despite reasonable accommodations, of carrying out Employee’s duties under this Agreement. In the
event of termination pursuant to this Section 7.1, the Company shall not be under any further obligation to Employee
hereunder except to promptly pay Employee (i) salary and benefits accrued and unpaid up to the date of termination, (ii) any
earned but unpaid Bonus, if any, with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding the date of termination
pursuant to Section 3.2 hereof, (iii) reimbursement for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5 hereof, and (iv) if the
termination is due to Disability, (A) payment of Employee’s monthly Base Salary on the Company’s regularly scheduled
payrolls during each of the 3 months immediately following termination, but in no event shall any such amount be paid later
than two and one-half months after the last day of the year in which the corresponding amount of such payment if not yet
received has ceased to be subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture within the meaning of Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and (B) payment or reimbursement of the premium for any COBRA
benefits Employee elects through Company for a period of six months from the date of termination.
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7.2
Termination By the Company Due to Cause. The Company shall have the right to discharge Employee
and terminate this Agreement for Cause (as hereinafter defined) during the Term by written notice to Employee and this
Agreement shall be deemed terminated as of the date of such notice, except that Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 shall survive
such termination. For the purpose of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean, in the Company’s good faith belief:
(i)
The committing of any criminal act under federal, state or local law, where such act would be a) a
felony or b) a crime involving moral turpitude which, in the reasonable judgment of the Company, has materially
interfered or will materially interfere with the ability of Employee to perform his duties hereunder, or has caused or
will cause material harm to the Company or its business; provided that, for purposes of this provision, a finding of
guilt and/or plea of guilty/nolo contender (no contest) is sufficient but not necessary.
(ii)
The breach of any provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, by acting dishonestly
or negligently regarding Employee’s performance hereunder, and Employee’s failure to cure such breach within ten
(10) business days of written notice from Company.
(iii)
The failure to perform Employee’s duties under this Agreement (other than for reasons related to
illness, injury or temporary disability).
(iv)
harassment.

The material violation of any applicable local, state or federal law relating to discrimination or

(v)
The material violation of Company’s policies and/or practices applicable to those at Employee’s
level, including, but not limited to, its employment policies and/or practices, including but not limited to nondiscrimination, anti-harassment and non-retaliation policies and practices.
(vi)
The taking of any action, whether intentionally or not, or failure to act, where such action/inaction
has the effect of materially undermining or harming the Company, its management, its business, its reputation or its
customers/clients/employees.
(vii)
The failure to comply with any oral or written report or directive of the Company, which failure is
not remedied within ten (10) business days of written notice from Company regarding same.
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Any act, or failure to act, based upon the authority given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or upon the
advice of counsel for the Company shall be conclusively presumed to be done, or permitted to be done, by Employee in good
faith and in the best interest of the Company. Termination of Employee’s employment shall not be deemed to be for Cause
unless and until the Company delivers to Employee a copy of a resolution duly adopted by the affirmative vote of not less
than a majority of the Board finding that the Employee is guilty of the conduct described in any of (i)-(vii) above.
In the event of a termination pursuant to this Section 7.2, the Company shall not be under any further obligation to Employee
hereunder, except to promptly pay Employee (a) salary and benefits accrued but unpaid up to the date of termination, (b)
reimbursement for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5 hereof, and (c) any other benefits required by applicable
law (e.g. COBRA), if eligible.
7.3
Termination By the Company Other Than Due to Death, Disability or Cause. This Agreement and the
employment of Employee hereunder may be terminated by the Company other than due to death, Disability or Cause by
giving at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Employee at any time during the Term and such termination shall be
effective as of the date of termination stated in such notice, except that Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 shall survive such
termination. In the event of a termination pursuant to this Section 7.3, the Company shall not be under any further obligation
to Employee hereunder, except to promptly pay Employee (i) salary and benefits accrued but unpaid up to the date of
termination, (ii) any earned but unpaid Bonus, if any, with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding the
date of termination pursuant to Section 3.2 hereof, (iii) reimbursement for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5
hereof, and (iv) Severance Benefits (as defined below) pursuant to Section 7.4.
7.4
Severance Benefits. For purposes of this Agreement, “Severance Benefits” shall mean (i) twelve (12)
months of Employee’s Base Salary payable in one lump sum, and (ii) payment or reimbursement to Employee of the
premium for any COBRA benefits Employee elects through Company for a period of twelve months from the date of
termination.
7.5
Termination by Employee. The Employee shall have the right to terminate Employee’s employment under
this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Company at any time, and such termination shall be
effective as of the date of termination stated in such notice, except that Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 shall survive such
termination.
(a)
Termination By Employee Other Than for Constructive Termination. In the event Employee
terminates employment under this Section 7.5 for other than Constructive Termination (as defined below), the
Company shall not be under any further obligation to Employee hereunder, except to promptly pay Employee (i)
salary and benefits accrued but unpaid up to the date of termination, (ii) any earned but unpaid Bonus, if any, with
respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding the date of termination pursuant to Section 3.2 hereof,
and (iii) reimbursement for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5 hereof.
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(b)
Termination by Employee for Constructive Termination. Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, a “Constructive Termination” will be deemed to have occurred pursuant to this Section
7.5 if there should occur the following:
(i)
a material adverse change in Employee’s position causing it to be of materially less authority,
duties or responsibility without Employee’s written consent, and such a materially adverse change shall in all events
be deemed to occur if Employee no longer serves as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company or any parent company of Company unless Employee consents in writing to such change, or if
Richard P. Nespola is reinstated as the Chief Executive Officer and/or Chairman of the Board of the Company;
(ii)
a material reduction, without Employee’s written consent or except as expressly permitted in this
Agreement, in Employee’s Base Salary;
(iii)
a relocation of Employee’s principal place of employment by more than 50 miles without
Employee’s consent;
(iv)

a material breach of any provision of this Agreement by Company.

Notwithstanding the above, in no event shall a Constructive Termination exist unless (1) Employee provides a
written notification to the Company sufficiently describing the event or condition alleged to give rise to the
Constructive Termination within 90 days of the initial existence of such event or condition, (2) the Company is
provided at least 10 days to remedy the event or condition, and (3) the Company fails to reasonably cure the event or
condition.
In the event Employee terminates his employment due to a Constructive Termination, the Company shall not be
under any further obligation to Employee hereunder, except to pay Employee within thirty (30) days of such
termination (i) salary and benefits accrued but unpaid up to the date of termination, (ii) any earned but unpaid
Bonus, if any, with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding the date of termination pursuant to
Section 3.2 hereof, (iii) reimbursement for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5 hereof, and (iv) Severance
Benefits pursuant to Section 7.4.
Upon termination due to a Change of Control (as defined below) or Constructive Termination, for ninety (90) days following
termination, Employee agrees to provide reasonable cooperation to the Company at the Company’s expense in winding up
Employee’s work for the Company and transferring that work to other individuals as designated by the Company. Upon termination
for any reason other than Death, Disability, Change of Control or Constructive Termination, for thirty (30) days following termination,
Employee agrees to provide reasonable cooperation to the Company at the Company’s expense in winding up Employee’s work for
the Company and transferring that work to other individuals as designated by the Company. Employee also agrees reasonably to
cooperate with the Company at Company’s expenses in litigation as requested by the Company; provided that, such cooperation does
not harm or conflict with Employee’s interests in such litigation, if any, and Employee is provided reasonable notice so as not to
interfere with Employee’s other work or employment obligations.
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To be eligible for any Severance Benefits payments under this Section 7, Employee must (i) within sixty (60) days of the date of
termination execute and deliver to the Company a final and complete release in a form that is acceptable and approved by the
Company after good faith negotiation with Employee, and (ii) in the Company’s good faith belief, be in full compliance with the
provisions of Sections 9 and 11 hereof at the time of any such payment.
8.
CHANGE IN CONTROL BENEFITS. Should there occur a Change in Control (as defined below), the following
provisions shall become applicable:
8.1
During the period (if any) following a Change in Control that Employee shall continue to provide services
under this Agreement, then the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.
8.2
Notwithstanding any other provision of Section 7, in the event of (a) a termination by the Company
pursuant to Section 7.3 at any time within twelve (12) months after a Change in Control, or (b) a Constructive Termination
pursuant to Section 7.5 at any time within twelve (12) months after a Change in Control, the Company shall pay Employee
within thirty (30) days of such event (i) salary and benefits accrued but unpaid up to the date of such event, (ii) any earned
but unpaid Bonus, if any, with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding the date of termination pursuant to
Section 3.2 hereof; (iii) reimbursement for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5 hereof, and (iv) Severance Benefits
pursuant to Section 7.4.
8.3
For purposes of this Section 8, a “Change of Control” shall be deemed to occur upon the earlier to occur of
an event described below, the Company entering a definitive agreement to accomplish a transaction or event as described
below, or a vote of the directors of the Company approving a definitive agreement for such a transaction or event as
described below:
(a)
the sale, lease, conveyance or other disposition of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Company’s
assets as an entirety or substantially as an entirety to any person, entity or group of persons acting in concert other
than in the ordinary course of business;
(b)
any transaction or series of related transactions (as a result of a tender offer, merger, consolidation
or otherwise) that results in any Person (as defined in Section 13(h)(8)(E) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934) becoming the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), directly
or indirectly, of more than 50% of the aggregate voting power of all classes of common equity of the Company,
except if such Person is (i) a subsidiary of the Company, (ii) an employee stock ownership plan for employees of the
Company or (iii) a company formed to hold the Company’s common equity securities, provided that, at the time
such company became such holding company, substantially all the stockholders of the Company comprise such
holding company’s stockholders and hold at least a majority of the voting power of such holding company;
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(c)
a merger (in which the Company is not the surviving operating entity), consolidation, liquidation
or dissolution of Company or winding up of the business of the Company.
9.

RESTRICTIONS.

9.1
Non-Disclosure. During and after the Term, Employee agrees to use best efforts and exercise utmost
diligence to protect and to safeguard the trade secrets and/or any confidential or proprietary information concerning the
Company or its business or any Affiliates of the Company (including, without limitation, trade secrets, plans, processes,
customer lists, contracts and compilations of information, records and specifications) which comes to Employee in the course
of Employee’s employment and which is not (independent of disclosure by Employee) public knowledge or general
knowledge in the trade. Employee agrees not to disclose any of the Company’s or any Affiliate’s trade secrets and/or
confidential information and/or proprietary information except as required in the course of Employee’s employment with the
Company or by legal process, in which case, Employee agrees to provide the Company with as much notice as is reasonably
practicable in the event the Company wishes to intervene to protect its rights. Employee agrees not to use Company’s or any
Affiliate’s trade secrets and/or confidential information and /or proprietary information, directly or indirectly, for Employee’s
own benefit or for the benefit of another. All files, records, documents, drawings, specifications, memoranda, notes, or other
documents relating to the business of the Company or any Affiliate, whether prepared by Employee or otherwise coming into
Employee’s possession, shall be the exclusive property of the Company and shall be delivered to the Company and not
reproduced and/or retained by Employee upon termination of Employee’s employment for any reason whatsoever or at any
other time upon request of the Company.
9.2
Non-solicitation. During the period of Employee's employment, and for a period of one (1) year following
the date of termination of Employee’s employment, the Employee shall not directly or indirectly, for himself or for any third
party, except as otherwise agreed to in writing by the Company:
(a)
Contact, solicit, advise, consult or do business with any Customer (as hereinafter defined) with
which Employee has had direct contact during, and arising from, his employment by the Company, for the purpose
of causing such Customer to purchase, or otherwise obtain products or services which are similar to or in any way
compete with the products or services sold or provided by the Company or an Affiliate, or
(b)
Induce, or attempt to induce, any Customer with which Employee has had direct contact during
the term of, and arising from, his employment by the Company, to cancel, diminish, decrease or curtail any business
relationship, contractual or otherwise, with the Company or an Affiliate, or
(c)
Contact, solicit, induce or attempt to induce or influence any employee, independent contractor or
agent of any Customer or Company or Affiliate to terminate his or her employment, engagement or contractual
relationship with such Customer or Company or Affiliate, or

8

(d)
Employ or hire any person who is employed by the Company or Affiliate (whether as an
employee or an independent contractor) with any business or other entity that is engaged in the industry in which
Company or Affiliate is involved.
9.3
Covenants Against Competition. During the period of Employee's employment, and for a period of one (1)
year following the date of Employee’s termination of employment, the Employee shall not within the Restricted Area (as
hereinafter defined), directly or indirectly as an employee, employer, consultant, agent, principal, partner, shareholder,
corporate officer, director or through any other kind of ownership (other than ownership of securities of publicly held
corporations of which Employee owns less than five (5%) percent of any class of securities) or in any other representative or
individual capacity:
(a)
Assist or have an interest (whether or not such interest is active), in any person, firm, partnership,
association, corporation or business organization, entity or enterprise that is or is about to become directly or
indirectly engaged in, any business or activity (whether such enterprise is in operation or in the planning or
development stage) that provides, sells, distributes or markets any products or services that compete in any manner
with the business conducted by Company or an Affiliate.
(b)
Enter into the employment of or act as an independent contractor or agent for or advisor or
consultant to, any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or business organization, entity or enterprise
that is or is about to become directly or indirectly engaged in, any business or activity (whether such enterprise is in
operation or in the planning or development stage) that provides, sells, distributes or markets any products or
services that compete in any manner with the business conducted by Company or an Affiliate.
Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, in the event of a Constructive Termination pursuant to Section 7.5 at any time
within twelve (12) months following a Change in Control, this Section 9.3 shall not apply.
9.4

Definitions.

“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or other entity
or organization directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such other
entity through the ownership of all or part of such entity.
“Customer” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture or other entity, or successors
thereof, which has either (i) purchased or contracted for services or products by or through the Company at any time within
one (1) year prior to the termination of Employee’s employment with the Company, or (ii) has been directly solicited by the
Company within six (6) months prior to the termination of Employee’s employment with the Company, regardless of whether
the Employee shall have direct contact with such individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture or entity.
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“Restricted Area” shall mean collectively the United States of America.
“Restrictions” shall mean the terms and covenants of Sections 9.1, 9.2 and 9.3, collectively.
9.5

Enforceability of Agreement.

(a)
Reasonableness of Restrictions. Employee has carefully read and considered the Restrictions and,
having done so, agrees that the Restrictions (including, but not limited to, the time period of restriction and the
geographical areas of restriction set forth herein) are fair and reasonable and are reasonably required for the
protection of the interests of Company, its owners, officers, directors and other employees. Employee has had the
opportunity to consult with an attorney prior to the execution of this Agreement, and freely executes this Agreement
either (i) following such consultation and with the advice of his attorney, or (ii) after freely waiving such right to
consult with an attorney prior to the execution of this Agreement.
(b)
Severability. In the event that, notwithstanding the foregoing, any part of the Restrictions shall be
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining parts thereof shall nevertheless continue to be valid and
enforceable as though the invalid or unenforceable parts had not been included therein. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, it is the intent and agreement of Company and Employee that the Restrictions shall be given the
maximum force, effect and application permissible under law.
(c)
Time Period. In the event that a Court of competent jurisdiction shall determine by final judgment
that the scope or time period of any of the Restrictions is too broad to be capable of enforcement, such court is
authorized to modify such covenants and to enforce them to the full scope and extent and for the full time period that
the Court deems just and equitable.
(d)
Passive Interest. The Restrictions shall not be construed to limit in any manner Employee's right to
maintain a passive ownership interest of less than five (5%) percent of any class of outstanding securities in any
entity, the securities of which are traded on a national exchange, which may compete with Company, so long as
Employee shall not have the right or power to elect a member of the Board of Directors of such entity or to
otherwise control the actions of such entity.
10.

REMEDIES.

10.1
Remedies Cumulative. Nothing herein contained is intended to waive or diminish any rights the Company,
any Affiliate or Employee may have at law or in equity at any time to protect and defend its legitimate property interests
including its business relationship with third parties, the foregoing provisions being intended to be in addition to and not in
derogation or limitation of any other rights the Company, an Affiliate or Employee may have at law or in equity.
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10.2
Injunctive Relief. Employee hereby acknowledges and agrees that Company would be irreparably injured,
the value of the business of Company would be irreparably damaged and Company could not adequately be compensated by
monetary damages, if Employee were to violate the Restrictions. Employee covenants and agrees that, if Employee shall
violate any of the Restrictions, Company specifically shall be entitled to injunctive and other equitable relief to enjoin
Employee's violations of such Restrictions. The prevailing party in any such injunctive action shall be entitled to
reimbursement from the other party for all actual attorney fees expended in such action.
10.3
Notice of Violation. In the event Company believes that Employee is violating any of the Restrictions,
Company shall so notify Employee in writing, which notice shall describe with as much specificity as possible, the nature of
the alleged violation. Provided that Employee is in violation of the Restrictions, if the Employee does not, within fourteen
(14) days following receipt of said notice, cease the conduct, terminate the relationship or otherwise cure such violation, the
Company shall have no further obligation to make payments to Employee pursuant to the terms of this Agreement following
the date of receipt of such notice.
10.4
Accounting For Profits. Employee hereby covenants and agrees that, if Employee shall violate any of the
Restrictions, Company shall be entitled to an accounting and repayment of all profits, compensation, commissions,
remunerations or benefits which Employee directly or indirectly has realized and/or may realize as a result of, growing out of
or in connection with any such violation.
11.
EMPLOYEE FOR HIRE. In addition to Employee’s services, the Company shall own forever and throughout the
world (exclusively during the current and renewed or extended term of copyright anywhere in the world and thereafter, nonexclusively) all rights of any kind or nature now or hereafter known in and to all of the products of Employee’s services performed
while an employee in any capacity and any and all parts thereof, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and all other property
or proprietary rights in or to any ideas, concepts, designs, drawings, plans, prototypes or any other similar creative works and to the
product of any or all of such services under this Agreement (collectively, “Inventions”). Employee hereby acknowledges and agrees
that for copyright purposes, Employee is performing services as the Company’s employee-for-hire; provided, however, that for
purposes of this Agreement, “Inventions” shall not include those that do not relate to the Company’s or an Affiliate’s current business
or research and development and were developed without use of any Company or Affiliate trade secret information or Company or
Affiliate’s facilities or equipment. Without limiting the generality of the previous two sentences, Employee acknowledges and agrees
that all memoranda, notes, records and other documents made or compiled by Employee or made available to Employee while an
employee concerning the Company or an Affiliate’s business shall be the Company’s property and shall be delivered by Employee to
the Company upon termination of this Agreement or at any other time at the Company’s request. In addition, the Employee hereby
agrees to assign to Company in writing (and take any and all other actions as shall be reasonably requested by Company in order to
carry out the intent of this Section) any and all rights, title or interest of Employee in any such copyrights, patents, property or
proprietary rights relating to such Inventions.
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12.

[INTENTIONALLY DELETED].

13.

MISCELLANEOUS.

13.1
Assignability. This Agreement, including but not limited to paragraphs 9 and 11, shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the Company, its respective successors, heirs, and assigns. Except as expressly set forth herein, this
Agreement may not be assigned by Employee without the express written consent of the Company.
13.2
Invalid Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, then
such provision shall be fully severable, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision had never comprised a part hereof; and the remaining provisions hereof shall remain in full force and
effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom. Furthermore,
in lieu of such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision, there shall be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a
provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and still be legal, valid, or
enforceable.
13.3
Notices. Any notices pertaining to this Agreement shall be addressed to the parties at their addresses stated
on the first page hereof. All notices shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given if personally delivered or sent by
registered, certified, overnight or express mail. If sent by registered or certified mail, notice shall be deemed to have been
received and effective three days after mailing; if by overnight or express mail, notice shall be deemed received the next
business day after being sent. Any party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving notice of such change in the
manner provided herein.
13.4
Construction of Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting the
subject matter contained herein. No terms, conditions or warranties other than those contained herein, and no amendments or
modification of any provision hereof shall be effective except by a written agreement signed by all of the parties hereto. This
Agreement shall not be strictly construed against either party.
13.5
Waiver. The waiver by either party hereto of a breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not
operate or be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same provision by any party or of the breach of any other
term or provision of this Agreement.
13.6
Titles. Titles of the paragraphs herein are used solely for convenience and shall not be used for
interpretation or construing any work, clause, paragraph, or provision of this Agreement.
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13.7

Arbitration.

(a)
It is understood and agreed between the parties hereto that, except with respect to claims for
workers’ compensation or unemployment compensation benefits, any and all claims, grievances, demands,
controversies, causes of action or disputes of any nature whatsoever (including but not limited to tort and contract
claims, and claims upon any law, statute, order, or regulation) (hereinafter “Claims”), arising out of, in connection
with, or in relation to (i) this Agreement, (ii) questions of arbitrability under this Agreement, or (iii) any relationship
between Employee and the Company before, at the time of entering, during the term of, upon or after expiration or
termination of this Agreement, shall be resolved by final, binding, non-judicial arbitration in accordance with the
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), which rules are incorporated
herein by reference. Such dispute resolution process shall be confidential and shall be conducted in accordance with
the Kansas Rules of Evidence.
(b)
Notwithstanding any contrary provision that may be contained in the applicable AAA rules, the
parties hereby agree that discovery shall be permitted in connection with any arbitration pursuant to this Agreement,
in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas Code of Civil Procedure. Neither party nor the arbitrator shall
disclose the existence, content, or results of any arbitration hereunder without the prior written consent of all parties.
Except as provided herein, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern the interpretation, enforcement and all
proceedings pursuant to this Section 13.7. The Arbitrator shall apply the substantive law (and the law of remedies, if
applicable) of the State of Kansas, or federal law, or both, as applicable. The arbitrator is without jurisdiction to
apply any different substantive law. The arbitrator shall have the authority to entertain a motion to dismiss and/or a
motion for summary judgment by any party and shall apply the standards governing such motions under Kansas law.
The arbitrator shall render an award and a written, reasoned opinion in support thereof. Such award may include
attorneys’ fees and costs to the prevailing party. Judgment upon the award may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.
(c)
Adherence to this dispute resolution process shall not limit the Company’s right to obtain any
provisional remedy, including but without limitation, injunctive or similar relief, from any court of competent
jurisdiction in the event of a breach of Section 9 of this Agreement. This dispute resolution process shall survive the
termination of Employee’s employment.
(d)
to a jury trial.

By signing this Agreement, both Employee and the Company are giving up their respective right

13.8
Personal Computer. During the Term, the Company shall provide Employee, at Company expense, with a
portable personal computer (the “Laptop”) with such capabilities and capacity, and including all necessary software, as shall
be reasonably necessary to discharge Employee’s duties under this Agreement. Upon termination of Employee’s
employment, the Employee shall promptly deliver to the Company any and all tangible property of the Company, including
without limitation the Laptop and any software related thereto and the contents of any files stored therein.
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13.9
Section 409A. This Agreement is intended to comply with Section 409A of the Code or an exemption
thereunder and shall be construed and administered in accordance with Section 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Agreement, payments provided under this Agreement may only be made upon an event and in a manner that
complies with Section 409A of the Code or an applicable exemption. Any payments under this Agreement that may be
excluded from Section 409A of the Code either as separation pay due to an involuntary separation from service or as a shortterm deferral shall be excluded from Section 409A of the Code to the maximum extent possible. For purposes of Section
409A of the Code, each installment payment provided under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment. Any
payments to be made under this Agreement upon a termination of employment shall only be made upon a "separation from
service" under Section 409A of the Code.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any payment or benefit provided to the Employee in
connection with his termination of employment is determined to constitute "nonqualified deferred compensation" within the
meaning of Section 409A of the Code and the Employee is determined to be a "specified employee" as defined in Section
409A(a)(2)(b)(i) of the Code, then such payment or benefit shall not be paid until the first payroll date to occur following the
six-month anniversary of the date of termination (the "Specified Employee Payment Date"). The aggregate of any payments
that would otherwise have been paid before the Specified Employee Payment Date shall be paid to the Employee in a lump
sum on the Specified Employee Payment Date and thereafer, any remaining payments shall be paid without delay in
accordance with their original schedule.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first set forth above.
THE COMPANY:
THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By:

/s/ Andrew D. Lipman

Printed Name:

Andrew D. Lipman

Title:

Chairman, Compensation Committee, Board of Directors

EMPLOYEE:
/s/ Donald E. Klumb
DONALD E. KLUMB
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January 25, 2012
Micky K. Woo
38 Devonshire Drive
Oak Brook, IL 60523
Dear Name:
This Agreement confirms the terms of Your employment as Executive Chairman of the Board with The Management Network Group,
Inc. (the “Company”), a TMNG Global company.
1.

Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date above and will terminate upon termination of

employment.
2.

Base Salary. You will be paid in bi-weekly installments based on an annual salary of $460,561.92.

Duties. Your duties and functions as Executive Chairman of the Board of the Company will be defined by
3.
the Company in its sole and exclusive discretion, which duties You agree to perform, unless You believe such duties require You to do
something unlawful or unethical, in which case You agree to bring the matter to the attention of the Company as soon as is reasonably
practicable. The Company reserves the right to amend or modify Your duties in its sole and exclusive discretion at any time for any
reason. In performing Your duties, You shall devote all working time, ability and attention to the business of the Company, You will
act to the best of your ability to further the best interest of the Company, and, in accordance with the highest ethical standards, You
shall seek to maximize the financial success of the Company’s business and to optimize the goodwill and reputation of the Company
within its industry and with its customers, and You shall not – directly or indirectly – render any services to or for the benefit of any
other business, whether for compensation or otherwise, without the prior written approval of the CEO or the Board of Directors of the
Company. Your employment with the Company shall at all times be subject to the Company’s then applicable policies and practices.
4.

Benefits. In addition to the compensation in paragraph 2 of this Agreement, You shall be eligible for the

following:
a.
Participation in Employee Plans. You shall be eligible to participate in any health, disability, and
group term life insurance plans or other perquisites and fringe benefits that the Company extends generally from
time to time to employees of the Company at the level of Senior Vice President.
b.
Paid Time Off. You shall be eligible for Paid Time Off in accordance with the Company’s leave
policies then in effect and applicable to a Partner.

Micky K. Woo
January 25, 2012
Page 2
Reimbursement of Expenses. Subject to such rules and procedures as the Company from time to time
5.
specifies, the Company shall reimburse you on a bi-weekly basis for reasonable business expenses necessarily incurred in the
performance of Your duties under this Agreement.
Confidentiality/Trade Secrets. You acknowledge Your position with the Company is one of the highest
6.
trust and confidence, both by reason of Your position and by reason of Your access to and contact with the trade secrets and
confidential and/or proprietary information of the Company. Both during the term of this Agreement and thereafter, You therefore
covenant and agree as follows:
a.
You shall use Your best efforts and exercise utmost diligence to protect and to safeguard the trade
secrets and confidential and/or proprietary information of the Company, including, but not limited to, the identity of
its current and/or prospective customers, suppliers, and licensors; its arrangements with its customers, suppliers, and
licensors; and its technical, financial, and marketing data, records, compilations of information, processes, programs,
methods, techniques, recipes, and specifications relating to its customers, suppliers, licensors, products, and
services;
b.
You shall not disclose any of the Company’s trade secrets or confidential and/or proprietary
information, except as may be required in the course of Your employment with the Company or by law, in which
case You agree to provide the Company with as much notice as is reasonably practicable in the event the Company
wishes to intervene to protect its rights; and
c.
You shall not use, directly or indirectly, for Your own benefit or for the benefit of another, any of
the Company’s trade secrets or confidential and/or proprietary information.
All files, records, documents, drawings, specifications, memoranda, notes, or other documents relating to the business of the
Company, whether prepared by You or otherwise coming into Your possession, shall be the exclusive property of the Company and
shall be delivered to the Company and not reproduced and/or retained by You upon termination of Your employment for any reason
whatsoever or at any other time upon request of the Company.
7.
Discoveries. In addition to Your services, the Company shall exclusively own forever and throughout the
world all rights of any kind or nature now or hereafter known in and to all of the products of Your services performed under this
Agreement in any capacity and any and all parts thereof, including but not limited to copyright, patent, and all other property or
proprietary rights in or to any ideas, concepts, designs, drawings, plans, prototypes, or any other similar creative works and to the
product of any or all of such services under this Agreement (“Inventions”). In addition, You hereby agree, during and after the Term,
to assign to the Company in writing (and to take any and all other actions as the Company requests to carry out the intent of this
paragraph 7) any and all rights, title, or interest in any such copyrights, patents, property or proprietary rights relating to the
Inventions. You acknowledge and agree that, for copyright purposes, You are performing services as the Company’s employee-forhire, which services include Inventions relating to the Company’s business or research and development (which may be defined in the
Company sole and exclusive discretion and may change from time to time), as well as Inventions developed with the use of the
Company’s trade secrets, confidential and/or proprietary information, facilities, or equipment. You acknowledge and agree that all
memoranda, notes, records, and other documents made or compiled by You or made available to You during the Term concerning
Your services performed under this Agreement shall be the Company’s property and shall be delivered by You to the Company upon
termination of Your employment or at any other time at the Company’s request.
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Non-Competition. You covenant and agree that, during the period of Your employment and for one year
8.
after the termination of Your employment, You shall not compete with the Company in any way, directly or indirectly, without the
prior written consent of the Company, including but not limited to as an employee, employer, consultant, agent, principal, partner,
shareholder, corporate officer, director, or through any other kind of ownership (other than ownership of securities of publicly held
corporations of which You own less than five percent 5% of any class of outstanding securities) or in any other representative or
individual capacity, engage in or render any services to any person and/or business that provides, sells, distributes, or markets any
products or services that compete with the Company in the data communications, telecommunications, media, entertainment or high
tech consulting business (the “Restricted Business Area”) within any geographic areas in which the Company conducts or has
conducted business or provides or has provided products or services.
Non-Solicitation. You covenant and agree that, during the period of Your employment and for one year
9.
following termination of Your employment for any reason by either You or the Company, You will not, either directly or indirectly,
for Yourself or for any third party, except as otherwise agreed to in writing by the Company (a) employ or hire any person who is
employed by the Company (whether as an employee or as an independent contractor) with any business or other entity that is engaged
in the industry or any other segment of the industry in which, during Your employment with the Company, the Company is involved,
may become involved in, or is considering becoming involved in; (b) solicit, induce, recruit, or cause (or attempt to solicit, induce,
recruit, or cause) any other person who is employed by the Company (whether as an employee or as an independent contractor) to
terminate their employment for the purpose of joining, associating, or becoming employed with any business or other entity that is
engaged in the industry or any other segment of the industry in which, during Your employment with the Company, the Company is
involved, may become involved in, or is considering becoming involved in; or (c) solicit, induce, recruit, or do business with (or
attempt to solicit, induce, recruit, or do business with) any entity or individual that was/is a customer/client of the Company during the
twelve month period prior to the termination of your employment and/or a prospective customer/client of the Company during the sixmonth period prior to the termination of your employment.
10.

Remedies for Breach of Covenants. Regarding paragraphs 6-9 of this Agreement:

a.
The Company and You specifically acknowledge and agree that the foregoing covenants in
paragraphs 6-9 are reasonable in content and scope and are given by You knowingly, willingly, voluntarily, and for
adequate and valid consideration. The Company and You further acknowledge and agree that, if any court of
competent jurisdiction or other appropriate authority disagrees with the parties' foregoing agreement as to
reasonableness, then such court or other authority shall reform or otherwise modify the foregoing covenants of You
in paragraphs 6-9 only so far as necessary to be enforceable as reasonable, notwithstanding and regardless of any
law or authority to the contrary.
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b.
The covenants set forth in paragraphs 6-9 of this Agreement shall continue to be binding upon
You notwithstanding the termination of Your employment with the Company for any reason. Such covenants shall
be deemed and construed as separate agreements independent of any other provisions of this Agreement and any
other agreement between You and the Company. The existence of any claim or cause of action by You against the
Company shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by the Company of any or all such covenants. You
expressly agree that the remedy at law for the breach of any such covenant is inadequate, that You shall not defend
against any claim by the Company on the basis of an adequate remedy of law, that injunctive relief and specific
performance shall be available to prevent the breach or any threatened breach thereof, that the party bringing the
claim shall not be required to post bond in pursuit of such claim, and that the prevailing party shall on any such
claim be entitled to recover attorneys’ fees, expert witness fees, and costs incurred in pursuit of such claim,
notwithstanding and regardless of any law or authority to the contrary.
c.
Nothing herein contained is intended to waive or to diminish any right the Company or You may
have at law or in equity at any time to protect and defend legitimate property interests, including business
relationships with third parties, the foregoing provisions being intended to be in addition to and not in derogation or
limitation of any other right the Company or You may have at law or in equity.
11.
Termination. If Your employment terminates 1) for any reason on or after September 30, 2012, 2) upon
the sale of the Company or 3) by action of the Board of Directors, then the Company shall 1) pay Your Base Salary and accrued but
unused vacation time through the date of such termination 2) reimburse You for expenses accrued and payable under Section 5 hereof
3) provide You with severance pay consisting of $350,000 payable in one lump sum and 4) pay the first twelve (12) months of
premium for COBRA coverage you elect through Company, if any, or pay you the value of that COBRA premium if you do not elect
coverage.
a.
Upon termination, You (i) agree to provide reasonable cooperation to the Company at the
Company’s expense in winding up Your work for the Company and transferring that work to other individuals as
designated by the Company, and (ii) agree reasonably to cooperate with the Company in litigation as requested by
the Company.
b.
To be eligible for any payments under this Section 11, You must (i) execute and deliver to the
Company a final and complete release in a form that is acceptable and approved by the Company, and (ii) in the
Company’s good faith belief, be in full compliance with the provisions of paragraphs 6-9 hereof at the time of any
such payment.
Computer Equipment. The Company has provided you with the following computer equipment: Lenovo
12.
X1 laptop, Lenovo X200 laptop, Lenovo T500 laptop, Cisco ASA 5501 firewall, Linksys Wi-Fi router and HP LaserJet printer
(together the “Computer Equipment”). Upon termination of employment, ownership of the Computer equipment will pass to you. In
addition to the Computer Equipment, You have a GSM mobile phone with number +44-777-617-6186. Upon termination of
employment, You may keep the phone, and all responsibility for any monthly payments will immediately pass to You.
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Notices. Any notices to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be effected either by personal
13.
delivery in writing or by mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, with return receipt requested. Mailed notices shall be addressed
as follows:
a.

If to the Company:
The Management Network Group, Inc.
7300 College Boulevard – Suite 302
Overland Park, KS 66210

b.

If to You:
Micky K. Woo
38 Devonshire Drive
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Either party may change its address for Notice by giving written notice to the other.
14.

General Provisions:

a.
Governing law and Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement and all disputes relating to Your
employment with the Company shall be subject to, governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Kansas, irrespective of any choice of law and/or of the fact that one or both of the parties now is or may
become a resident of a different state. You hereby expressly submit and consent to the exclusive personal
jurisdiction and exclusive venue of the federal and state courts of competent jurisdiction in the State of Kansas,
notwithstanding any applicable law to the contrary.
Assignability. This Agreement, including but not limited to paragraphs 6-9, shall be binding upon
b.
and inure to the benefit of the Company, its respective successors, heirs, and assigns. Except as expressly set forth
herein, this Agreement may not be assigned by You without the express written consent of the Company.
c.
Invalid Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable, then such provision shall be fully severable, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if
such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part hereof; and the remaining provisions
hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable
provision or by its severance herefrom. Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision there
shall be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision as may be possible and still be legal, valid or enforceable.
Construction of Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and
d.
supersedes all prior agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof.
No terms, conditions or warranties, other than those contained herein, and no amendments or modifications hereto
shall be binding unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. This Agreement shall not be strictly
construed against either party.
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Waiver. The waiver by either party hereto of a breach of any term or provision of this Agreement
e.
shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same provision by any party or of the
breach of any other term or provision of this Agreement.
Titles. Titles of the paragraphs herein are used solely for convenience and shall not be used for
f.
interpretation or construing any work, clause, paragraph or provision of this Agreement.
g.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
If the foregoing terms meet with our understanding, please sign this Agreement where indicated below.
Very truly yours,
THE MANAGEMENT NETWORK GROUP, INC.
By: /s/ Andrew D. Lipman
Andrew D. Lipman
Chairman, Compensation Committee,
Board of Directors
Confirmed as of the date first written above:
/s/ Micky K. Woo
Micky K. Woo

EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Name of Subsidiary
TMNG.COM, Inc.
TMNG Europe Ltd.
TMNG Canada Ltd.
TMNG Marketing, LLC
TMNG Technologies, Inc.
Cambridge Strategic Management Group, Inc. (formerly TMNG Strategy, Inc.)
Cambridge Adventis Ltd.
RVA Consulting, LLC
TWG Consulting, Inc.
Cartesian Ltd.
Mobile Device LeasexChange, LLC

Jurisdiction of Incorporation
Delaware
England and Wales
Canada
Kansas
Delaware
Delaware
England and Wales
New Jersey
Kansas
England and Wales
Delaware

EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-37304, 333-74940, 333-114979, 333-123948,
333-137869 and 333-158500 on Form S-8 of our report dated March 30, 2012, relating to the consolidated financial statements of The
Management Network Group, Inc. appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Management Network Group, Inc. for the
year ended December 31, 2011.
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
March 30, 2012

EXHIBIT 31.1
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Donald E. Klumb, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Management Network Group, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)), for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.
BY: /s/ DONALD E. KLUMB
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, PRESIDENT, AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER
Date: March 30, 2012

EXHIBIT 32.1
Certifications Furnished Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002
I, Donald E. Klumb, Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Financial Officer of The Management Network Group,
Inc. (the "Company"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:
1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2011 (the "Report") fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

BY: /s/ DONALD E. KLUMB
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, PRESIDENT, AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER
Date: March 30, 2012

